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GENERAL INFORMATION

Stelux Holdings International Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda and the address
of its principal place of business is 27/F, Stelux House, 698
Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are
shown in Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and with the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

As at 31 March 2024, included in current liabilities of the
Group are bank borrowings of approximately HK$233.984
million which contain a repayment on demand clause,
HK$92.485 million out of HK$233.984 million are bank
borrowings that are contractually repayable within the next
twelve months, together with the related bank borrowings
interests of HK$17.448 million. However, as of that date,
the available cash and cash equivalents of the Group was
only maintained at HK$67.711 million. These conditions
may create doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the current and anticipated future liquidity of the Group
and the ability of the Group to continue to attain profitable
and positive cash flows from operations in the immediate
and longer terms.

Based on the Group’s credit history and historical
relationship with the banks, the directors of the Company
do not believe that it is probable that the banks will
demand immediate repayment of bank borrowing of
approximately HK$233.984 million but rather such
bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with their
scheduled repayment dates as disclosed in Note 6(a)(iv).
Accordingly, principal and interest payments due within
the next twelve months from the reporting date amounted
to HK$109.933 million.

In addition, in order to strengthen the Group’s liquidity in
the foreseeable future, the directors of the Company have
taken measures such as closing down under-performing
retail stores and implementing various cost control
measures to reduce the costs of operations. The Group
continues with the implementation of the aforementioned
measures in order to achieve further improvement of the
Group's liquidity in short-term and long-term periods.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The directors of the Company have taken into account the
cash requirements of the Group for the next twelve months
commencing from the end of the reporting period. With
unutilised banking facilities of approximately HK$60.0
million as at 31 March 2024, other potential sources of
funding, and continued adoption of the above measures,
the directors have therefore concluded that the Group
will have sufficient working capital to fully meet its
financial obligations when they fall due. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

ADOPTION OF REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

(@ Application of revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following relevant
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2023
for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
and HKFRS Practice Policies
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

3. ADOPTION OF REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@

Application of revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of
Accounting Policies”

The Group has adopted Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of
Accounting Policies” for the first time in the current
year. HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”
is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general-
purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all
accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must
not obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Making Materiality
Judgements” (the “Practice Statement”) is also
amended to illustrate how an entity applies the
“four-step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about
an accounting policy is material to its financial
statements. Guidance and examples are added to the
Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance but has affected the disclosure of
the Group’s accounting policies set out in Note 4 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

3. ADOPTION OF REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@)

Application of revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS
12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction”

The Group has adopted Amendments to HKAS 12
“Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction” for the first time in the
current year. The amendments narrow the scope
of the initial recognition exemption to exclude
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences — e.g. leases.

Prior to the adoption of Amendments to HKAS 12,
the Group applied the initial recognition exemption
under paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 for leasing
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences, and therefore no deferred
tax has been recognised for temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
at initial recognition, and also over the lease terms
under paragraph 22(c) of HKAS 12.

The Group has applied the transitional provisions
under paragraphs 98K and 98L of Amendments to
HKAS 12 to leasing transactions that occur on or
after the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented and also, at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented by:

(i) Recognising a deferred tax asset to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised, and a
deferred tax liability for all deductible and
taxable temporary differences associated with
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities; and

(i) Recognising the cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained earnings (or
other component of equity, as appropriate) at
that date.

STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

3.

RS B R BRERER (3

(@

FERRERT B R M BRERER 4

FERAEBEFERE 125 (BFT )
[E-XZHELENEERAENEHS
HIRER IR | &

7 B2 81 A A AT B T VR B T o e e
RIS 1258 (IBFTA) T —x2 54
& e A A B AR EBLIE ] © 5%
BT EV R MR TR #E - L
PR S A AR S5 K AT R I 25 A 1 38
g () -

A PR AN B s RIS 298 (IBRTAR)
A ASEE [ R AW G 52512
SREE15 R 24 B0k g i AR A5 (H HLnT K8
W IRGE2E BL  FLE AT 5 HE R A R R
# UL > RIGHERR R SARYE &
B 2985822 () BN L
A Sl 4 598 A7 R 07 D R O e L S it
2 W 2 R R SRR R B IA o

A BB R DL Ry 2R s e e
RIIZE129% BRTAS) 598K X 98LBLIH T
R AR SCIRE A A BT R 8 B R L R
101 1 BR i R B 2 4% DA R T T B2 1) e
LM AR PR LG R s Ak 2 IR 5

(i) 7E AT REMEAS A ik B IR 2 B
TP R R v P 4 DT
AR AE B TE B A > Sl iy A B
il I HE e AR A B 2 AT 4
T8 L R I IR P 2 B e R R
ERIHA R 5

(i) R0 4h I ) 5% S5 B W ARAE /5
$55Z F AR B B A (ORE i H A A
RSy - A ) ) R
[ikiFa Y2 X



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

3. ADOPTION OF REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@

Application of revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS
12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction” (Continued)

Based on the management’s assessment, there was
immaterial impact on the consolidated balance
sheet as at 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023 and 31
March 2024. There was also immaterial impact on
the opening retained profits as at 1 April 2022 as a
results of the change.

Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) — Long Service
Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong

The Group has several subsidiaries operating in Hong
Kong which are obliged to pay LSP to employees
under certain circumstances. Meanwhile, the Group
makes mandatory and voluntary MPF contributions
to the trustee who administers the assets held in
a trust solely for the retirement benefits of each
individual employee. Offsetting of LSP against an
employee’s accrued retirement benefits derived from
employers” MPF contributions was allowed under the
Employment Ordinance (Cap.57).

In June 2022, the Government of the HKSAR gazetted
the Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance
2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”) which
abolishes the use of the accrued benefits derived
from employers’ mandatory MPF contributions to
offset severance payment and LSP (the “Abolition”).
The Abolition will officially take effect on 1 May
2025 (the “Transition Date”). In addition, under
the Amendment Ordinance, the last month’s salary
immediately preceding the Transition Date (instead
of the date of termination of employment) is used
to calculate the portion of LSP in respect of the
employment period before the Transition Date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

3. ADOPTION OF REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@)

Application of revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long Service
Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong (Continued)

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” which provides guidance
for the accounting for the offsetting mechanism and
the impact arising from abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong. In light of this,
the Group has implemented the guidance published
by the HKICPA in connection with the LSP obligation
retrospectively so as to provide more reliable and
more relevant information about the effects of the
offsetting mechanism and the Abolition.

The Group considered the accrued benefits arising
from employer MPF contributions that have been
vested with the employee and which could be
used to offset the employee’s LSP benefits as a
deemed contribution by the employee towards the
LSP. Historically, the Group has been applying the
practical expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 to
account for the deemed employee contributions as a
reduction of the service cost in the period in which
the related service is rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

3. ADOPTION OF REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@

Application of revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long Service
Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong (Continued)

Based on the HKICPA’s guidance, as a result of
the Abolition, these contributions are no longer
considered “linked solely to the employee’s service
in that period” since the mandatory employer MPF
contributions after the Transition Date can still be
used to offset the pre-transition LSP obligation.
Therefore, it would not be appropriate to view the
contributions as “independent of the number of years
of service” and the practical expedient in paragraph
93(b) of HKAS 19 is no longer applicable. Instead,
these deemed contributions should be attributed to
periods of service in the same manner as the gross
LSP benefit applying paragraph 93(a) of HKAS 19.

Since the amount of the cumulative catch-up
profit or loss adjustment for the year ended 31
March 2023 was immaterial, the Group did not
restate the comparative figures for the financial
statements. Accordingly, the Group has recognised
the cumulative catch-up adjustment in the profit
or loss for the year ended 31 March 2024, with
corresponding adjustment to the LSP obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.  ADOPTION OF REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. BHHMREITEBMEREER )
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)  Revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (b) EBHEMGEERERNRKETEBHE
HE%ER
The Group has not early applied the following A B [ NI A L Y LA AR A 1E
relevant amendments to standards and interpretation AR YE R R BERY AR BRAE AT -

that have been issued but are not yet.

Effective for
accounting periods

of the Group
beginning on or after
REERUTHH
HZREABE
SIHEEX
Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 April 2024
A R IEE 19 (BT A) — IRE) SR B B 20244F4H1H
Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 April 2024
A TR SR 1 R (B AT A — MHA 325 A9 JE i £ 2024441 H
Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sales and Leaseback 1 April 2024
A s I F i HE AUSR 1 698 (1B AT A — B AR [ FH AV AL A £ 20244F4 4 1H
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements — 1 April 2024
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause (“HK Int 5 (Revised)”)
A R R 5 9E (RERT) BABS R I B — 2085 (B FR SRR ek i 2 1 6 20244F4H1H
AR ([ Hs i R A 5 9k (RERT) )
Amendments to HKAS 21 — Lack of Exchangeability 1 April 2025
A E Rt AR 21 9% (AT A) — Bz ] et 20254F4 4 1H
The directors of the Company anticipate that the AN EIERE o R ITA H AL
application of all other amendments to HKFRSs VoA S o B R B T A A AN S AT
will not have material impact on the consolidated SURA 555 P A R o

financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g.
investment properties and certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 5.

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below:

(@ Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March. Subsidiaries are
all entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power to direct the activities of the entity. When
assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered
only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(@)

Consolidation (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
and any accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly,
to the Company. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(@

(b)

(9]

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in
a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions (i.e.
transactions with owners in their capacity as owners).
The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which
the noncontrolling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the
owners of the Company.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker.

The Company has appointed the executive directors
as the chief operating decision makers to review the
operating results of the Group on a consolidated
basis and makes strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(if)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the functional
currency of the Company and presentation
currency of the Group.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on initial
recognition using the exchange rates prevailing
on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at
the exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
The transaction date is the date on which the
company initially recognises such non-monetary
assets or liabilities. Non-monetary items that are
measured at fair value in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates
when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EESHBERER G
(Continued)
(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued) d) INEBRE (4
(iii)  Translation on consolidation (iii)  FFHAMHE

The results and balance sheet of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

J assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

o income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

. all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment
in foreign entities, and of borrowings, are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment
are repaid, the associated exchange differences
are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the

straight-line method to allocate their cost to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives, as

follows:

Leasehold land Shorter of remaining lease term
or useful life

Buildings Shorter of the unexpired lease
term or 20 to 50 years

Equipment and leasehold 3 to 10 years or over the lease
improvements term

Furniture and fixtures 3 to 15 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.
Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment loss, if any. The assets’ residual values
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(e)

®

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement within “Other gains, net”.

Investment properties

Investment properties principally leasehold land and
buildings are held for long-term rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group.

Investment property is stated at fair value and their
fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment properties are recognised in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
withdrawn from use. Any gain or loss on disposal of
an investment property is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
property and is recognised in profit or loss. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 4(r).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(g Intangible assets

(i)

(if)

(iif)

Goodwill

Goodwill is subsequently measured as
disclosed in Note 4(i). Goodwill on acquisitions
of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The
units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes, being the
operating segments.

Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at
historical cost. Trademarks have an indefinite
useful life and are not amortised but tested
annually for impairment.

Technical know-how

Technical know-how acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The technical know-how has
a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of 30 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet when
the Group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in income statement.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for
offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be
set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy
or the termination of a contract.

(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in two
categories:

o financial assets at amortised cost; and

J financial assets designated at fair
value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”) with no recycling
of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost
The Group classifies its financial assets at

amortised cost only if both of the following
criteria are met:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4., EESTHEERER @)
(Continued)
(h) Recognition and derecognition of financial h EBMTACEIRKILERI G

instruments (Continued)

(1)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)

. the financial asset is held within a
business model with the objective of
collecting the contractual cash flows; and

J the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost
includes trade and other receivables, deposit
and bank balances.

Financial assets designated at FVTOCI (Equity
investment)

The Group makes an election to designate its
equity investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained profits. It is not recycled through
income statement. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI,
are recognised in income statement as other
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h) Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

(1)

(if)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets designated at FVTOCI (Equity
investment) (Continued)

All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets
are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted
for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the income statement when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the income statement.

STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

4.

BEEETBRREN @)

(h

TRTAZEARKILER @)

(1)

(i)

A E ()

18 5E Bt E RN A A &R
e THT A i R ) 4 Al A (HE 4 T
R) )

A R N 2 el
B E A A oy HORRERR B A Ik
fERE o WA H AR A T S M
J) SSCAE 91 T A Y IR ] R 52 W
EZEMEEHRE - A Ok
A < il R R DA A B
NFERE > BT REEN
SRR E

A FER A TA

R 7 s JU 5 o YR R >
B L g TR IR IR % &l
B L TR A K%
PEVEE Rl A U B2 T H
ZEFMAEAT I3 - M2 TR
TR RN AL M 2 T A A
fRAR L P R T B R 2 AT AT
aR . Al m A E LG T
R M gt BORES T

fHEE M B

VIR HERBAR - wh B B R K
FLAR SR TP 30 05 42 6
At BRIEFBEEZEAKR
TE 7% DU T RIHE A S i o b
BURE N P B AR IRF DA B2 8 B H
GIESE SR P fFiE A&
Je R 18 2 AR AR,

HEE R A 2 G O E
AT Ao 7 M g A DA B S R
B AL BB 2 2 2 U
LR S SRR A 1
FLAETE R i AR BB A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

@

()

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other non-financial
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECL”) for all debt instruments not held
at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on
the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required
for credit losses expected over the remaining life of
the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default
(a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default
when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also
consider a financial asset to be in default when
or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME
-

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

()

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below:

Stage 1: Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs.

Stage 2: Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL.

Stage 3: Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

()

(k)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant
financing component, if any, the Group chooses as its
accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(k) Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily laptops and office furniture. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised
as an expense on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to income
statement in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(k) Leases (Continued)

(1)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred.

Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, except for the right-of-use assets that
meet the definition of investment property are
carried at fair value.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life
and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(k) Leases (Continued)

(1)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will
be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in income statement if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that
do not meet the definition of investment
properties and lease liabilities separately in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

U]

(m)

(n)

Inventories

Raw materials, work-in-progress and finished
goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and
subcontracting fee. Costs are assigned to individual
items of inventory on the basis of weighted average
costs. Costs of purchased inventory are determined
after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale. Provision for inventories is recognised
in the consolidated income statement within “other
operating expenses”.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in
the consolidated balance sheet. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(0)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the
sale of watch products for general repairs of defects
occurring during the warranty period. Provisions
for these assurance-type warranties granted by the
Group on certain products are recognised based
on sales volume and past experience of the level of
repairs and returns, discounted to their present values
as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(p)

(q)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received a consideration (or an amount
of consideration that is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays the consideration before the Group
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control of the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group;

or

(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(90 Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan and the sponsoring employers of the
postemployment benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

4.

EEETBRER ()
(@ BBAL )
b HEHEEFSGTIBERZ— > H

SACAE [ A7

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

% E B S ARG T A R — 4
M8 B AR (EHEELA
A~ TR LA A F ]
1 UL BAT B

—EHHl AR —E B
A E (B R
R B 2 B A 2k A
% — EH N Ay e gk
B2z E) ;

B B S AR 5 =05 2

e

—HEA—BEE LS
AR EL— B R
SEZBE AT ;

R EC M Ry R A I e AR 4R
A I W ) B AR BTG
B Z AR EARAEE
A E S AR £
I I 5 IR B A 4 19 A B
Wt

% T8 32 (a) T PN -4
il St R HE ]

T (@) (i) BT 3l 2 N3 3%
L VN2 VIRV
ZEMEEZER N
Al) 2 EEAEME N A
e

% A O 4 ) AT
Al Jl B 2 ) 1) 74 4 ] A
€ 3 RSNk e s e g
NE A -

B () A RA A
2024 AR

82



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EESHBEER @)
(Continued)
()  Revenue recognition r WARER

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised PN =R RNy OP A€ VL) NS er
He 2 I AR 2 o 0 A e . o SR
T A HERETS 09 AUAE B B T 2% 5 I e

consideration to which the Group expects to be R o
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

when control of goods or services is transferred
to the customers at an amount that reflects the

(i) Sale of watch products (i) FFE
KEEWMHEEZIWAREEZ
PEhI RERE T & PR (— R 558

AH Bt IR) TfERR o

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset
is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the products.
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Some contracts for the sale of products provide
customers with rights of return and volume
rebates. The rights of return give rise to variable
consideration.

. Rights of return ° B

A T % 7RG E R A
AREE G GRS

For contracts which provide a customer
with a right to return the goods within

83

a specified period, the expected value
method is used to estimate the goods
that will not be returned because this
method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the
Group will be entitled. The requirements
in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates
of variable consideration are applied
in order to determine the amount of
variable consideration that can be
included in the transaction price. For
goods that are expected to be returned,
instead of revenue, a refund liability is
recognised. A right-of-return asset (and
the corresponding adjustment to cost of
sales) is also recognised for the right to
recover products from a customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(r)  Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i) Other income

Building management services income and
shared services income are recognised when
the services are rendered.

(i) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms.

(iv)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method
by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

(v)  Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.

(s)  Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

®

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in income statement because of items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit and at the time of transaction
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

®

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in income statement, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model of the Group
whose business objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through
sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for
such investment properties are measured based on
the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

®

(u)

Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. The Group recognises
a deferred tax asset related to lease liabilities to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised and a deferred tax liability
for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Employee benefits
(i) Pension obligations

Group companies operate various pension
schemes. The schemes are generally funded
through payments to insurance companies or
trustee-administered funds. The Group mainly
has defined contribution plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

4.

BEESHEREN #)

(®

(u)

BLE ()

S BLIE T R B R AR
Lo AEEBHAEEENHEA
TR0 IS 7 s R TSR 1 2B L
SE o ASSE I TE ME SRR A AT AR HE 8
T T 1 R IR 2 A I e R B B B
A I ) A OB 5 I I e B L T AT
JRE AL T I 2 R A AR A B T A A

A R AT R D BB
A B B A JE 1 AR AR > Sl S B[]
— BB B B ROl TR AT B HL AR 4
V5 2 e A A L L B B T
KB AR RIRIEB I A M AT
ERGESFEE

BEEF
(i) BT FIE(T

A B 2 A AN A B AR AR B
H o BZAF R — O A A PR
B o\ B 5 REE B IR AR &
P R AT - AL E E
BOA e ot # o

SR T ) % A A 2 1 28
SF T SO AR E R 2 IR AR
I o fif 2 4 2 A A T
B 7 0 [ S AS A2 D 1) 2
B AT B A B A B I B A B 2
A - RS R A AT 35
AR BT SO RAMIER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EERTBEER @)
(Continued)
(u) Employee benefits (Continued) w EEEFNE
(i) Pension obligations (Continued) (i) ABUKFIEIEAT )

The Group pays contributions to publicly
administered pension plans on a mandatory
basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available.

For the defined benefit retirement plans, the
liability recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation less the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by using the projected unit credit
method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows using
appropriate interest rates of selected corporate
bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid, and that have
terms to maturity approximating the terms of
the related pension obligation.

7 452 8] 4 5 i A i 2 S B
ZIBR R EfEE o A S R
SRR o AR AT R
o RO B0 R e RD A% 1 A
Ha A B S o FAT PR b &
E o MEDUR [ B 4 sl nT 40 sk B
BT BRI -

B E ARG B S R
GerEERAMEPHERZAM
Ty AR A BT 2 BUE BT #
BEZNE o SRR R
B 4F R OM T AL B RC ik
oo UM AR Z BUER
158 o~ m R (DLSAHAR ALY 1
Wt > 2100 4F 1) B A B AR AR
B AT B AR SR ) B0 8 R R
IEBLAL R AA BBt R E

B () A RA A
2024 AR

88



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

89

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4., EESHBEERGE
(Continued)
(u) Employee benefits (Continued) w EEEFNE
(i) Pension obligations (Continued) (i) ABUKFIEIEAT )

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit
liability which include actuarial gains and
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), and any change
in the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability) are recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise and will not be reclassified to profit
or loss.

Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate at the beginning of the period to
the net defined benefit liability. However, if
the Group remeasures the net defined benefit
liability before plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement, the Group determines net interest
for the remainder of the annual reporting
period after the plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement using the benefits offered under
the plan and the plan assets after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement and
the discount rate used to remeasure such net
defined benefit liability or asset, taking into
account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability or asset during the period resulting
from contributions or benefit payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EESTHERER @)
(Continued)
(u) Employee benefits (Continued) w EEEFNE
(i) Pension obligations (Continued) (i) ABUKFIEIEAT )
Defined benefit costs are categorised as S AR A A BT

follows:

o Service cost (including current service
cost, past service cost, as well as
gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements);

o Net interest expense or income; and
o Remeasurement

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in
the consolidated balance sheet represents the
actual deficit or surplus in the Group’s defined
benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this
calculation is limited to the present value of
any economic benefits available in the form of
refunds from the plans or reduction in future
contributions to the plan.

Discretionary contributions made by employees
or third parties reduce service cost upon
payment of these contributions to the plan.

For LSP obligation in Hong Kong, the Group
accounts for the employer MPF contributions
expected to be offsetted as a deemed employee
contribution towards the LSP obligation in
term of HKAS 19 paragraph 93(a) and it is
measured on a net basis. The estimated amount
of future benefit is determined after deducting
the negative service cost arising from the
accrued benefits derived from the Group’s
MPF contributions that have been vested
with employees, which are deemed to be
contributions from the relevant employees.

o RES RLA (L HE E Ik
WA - i 2 i AR A% A
DA K A4 Dok % A S A i B
18

o FIESZHEAFE &

TR

G4 R R P R 2
AR A 2
) BE B R L+ T
97 8 2 1 2085 T L L
R Bl ) R A B 2
2T AT HE T 2 T 450 R
2B -

18 B 23 = 77 15 A i
TP S 1 ) A4 RIS B 2 IR S
AR

A R I & R AR T
B RIEFEGEIELLE 1998
5593 (a) Bt > A< P TS 8
) A = o A < A KL 2 R
e Bs & TAL A IR B itk > 9%
TRRULYEST R o RS M il
BB 0B i AR 4 R A
PR (O i vt 1R BT B 2
R A B 3t 30 9 2 54 ) BT
PR B IRES IRA AR R E o

B () A RA A
2024 AR

90



91

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(u) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(1if)

(iv)

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a
formula that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Company’s shareholders
after certain adjustments. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

)

(w)

(x)

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to it and that the grant
will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred
and recognised in profit or loss over the period
to match them with the costs they are intended
to compensate. Government grants that become
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Dividends distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position
at the end of the reporting period are adjusting
events and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5.  CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements (apart from those
involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

(@) Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends upon future operational performance
and the expected future operating cash inflows;
and the continuous availability of banking facilities.
Details are explained in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(b)  Significant increase in credit risk

The ECL are measured as an allowance equal to
12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage
2 when its credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define
what constitutes a significant increase in credit
risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information.

(c)  Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement
date for leases that include renewal options
exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates the
likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise
the option, including favourable terms, leasehold
improvements undertaken and the importance of that
underlying asset to the Group’s operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(c)  Determining the lease term (Continued)

Generally, periods covered by an extension option in
other properties leases have not been included in the
lease liability because the Group could replace the
assets without significant cost or business disruption.
See Note 19 for further information.

The lease term is reassessed when there is
a significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s control.
During the year, no lease term has been reassessed.

(d)  Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are not held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group’s
deferred tax for investment properties, the directors
have adopted the presumption that investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered through sale.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next year, are discussed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(@  Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.

During the year, the income tax was charged to
income statement disclosed in Note 15.

(b)  Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

The Group assesses at least annually whether
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets exhibit any indications of impairment. The
recoverable amounts are determined based on value-
in-use calculation. The value-in-use calculation
involves estimating the future cash inflows and
outflows to be derived from continuing use of the
asset and applying the appropriate discount rate to
those future cash flows. The estimation of future cash
flows and selection of discount rate require the use
of judgements and estimates. Management believes
that any reasonably foreseeable change in any of the
above key elements in the value-in-use calculation
would not result in material additional impairment
charges.

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31 March
2024 were in Note 17 and Note 19 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(c)  Fair value of investment properties

The Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including (1) current prices in an active
market for properties of a different nature, condition
and location, adjusted to reflect those differences;
(2) recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and (3)
independent valuations.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at
31 March 2024 is disclosed in Note 18.

(d)  Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill
have suffered any impairment. The Group reviews
goodwill for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the related carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amount has been determined based on higher of
value-in-use calculation and fair value less cost
of disposal. The calculation requires the use of
judgments and estimates.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 March
2024 and valuation assumption used in determining
recoverable amount is disclosed in Note 20.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(e)  Impairment of trademarks

Trademarks with an indefinite useful life are carried
at costs and are not amortised. Management tests
annually whether the trademarks suffered any
impairment by considering the economic benefit
to be generated from trademarks. The recoverable
amount is determined based on value-in-use
calculation. This calculation used pre-tax cashflows
projections based on financial budgets prepared
by management. Management determined the
financial budget based on past performance and
its expectations for the future market development,
which involved significant judgment and estimates.

The carrying amount of trademarks as at 31 March
2024 and valuation assumption used in determining
recoverable amount is disclosed in Note 20.

() Deferred tax assets

The Group’s management determines the amount
of deferred tax asset to be recognised by estimating
the amount of future profit available to utilise the tax
losses or certain temporary differences in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity. The estimate is based
on the projected profit in respective jurisdiction
and entity and the Group uses its judgement to
make assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing on balance sheet date. It could
change as a result of the uncertainties in the market
conditions.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets recognised
as at 31 March 2024 is disclosed in Note 29.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(g)  Fair value measurement

The Group’s unlisted equity investment was classified
as equity investment at FVTOCI and measure at fair
value using market approach with reference to the
price to earnings multiple of comparable companies
listed in the market. This valuation requires the
Group to make estimates about price to earnings
multiple, non-marketability discount, and hence they
are subject to uncertainty.

The fair value of the equity investment at FVTOCI as
at 31 March 2024 is disclosed in Note 21.

(h)  Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management will reassess the estimations at
the balance sheet date.

The allowance for inventories was made for the year
ended 31 March 2024 is disclosed in Note 23.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
() Impairment of trade receivables

The Group estimates ECL on trade receivables using
a provision matrix. The provision rates are based
on aging of debtors as groupings of various debtors
taking into consideration the Group’s historical
default rates and forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in
the forward-looking information are considered.

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of trade
receivables (net of impairment loss) is disclosed in
Note 24.

()  Actuarial assumptions on defined benefit retirement
plans

Accounting for defined benefit plans may be
complex because actuarial assumptions are required
to measure the obligation and the expense, with the
possibility that actual results differ from the assumed
results. These differences are known as actuarial
gains and losses. Defined benefit obligations are
measured using the projected unit credit method,
according to which the Group has to make a reliable
estimate of the amount of benefits earned in return
for services rendered in current and prior periods,
using actuarial techniques. As a result, the use of the
projected unit credit method involves a number of
actuarial assumptions. These assumptions include
demographic assumptions such as mortality, turnover
and retirement age and financial assumptions such
as discount rates, salary and benefit levels. Such
assumptions are subject to judgements and may
develop materially differently than expected and
therefore may result in significant impacts on defined
benefit obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

() Actuarial assumptions on defined benefit retirement
plans (Continued)

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of
retirement benefit obligations is disclosed in Note 31.

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(@ Financial risks

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign exchange risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors of the Company reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong,
China and a number of countries in Southeast
Asia. Retail sales transactions are mostly
denominated in the functional currencies of
respective group entities. The Group’s exposure
to foreign exchange risk mainly arises from
commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entities
to which they relate. The Group considers its
foreign currency exposure as mainly arising
from the exposure of the Singapore dollar,
Malaysian ringgit, Thai baht, Renminbi and
Swiss Franc against the Hong Kong dollar.
The Group regularly monitors its exposures to
foreign currency transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. BERBER 4
(@ Financial risks (Continued) (@ BAFEREE (A
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i) SMEEME S ()
The impact to the Group’s profit before tax that A B (9] T 2 T B 1) 9 T A I
might be resulted from the reasonable possible R G PR R] e S Y 1T 5 R B
changes in the foreign exchange rates against 7 42 T ) T T Vi 1 BE 40 5 A
the Hong Kong dollar to which the Group BN -

has significant exposure as at the end of the
reporting date is summarised below:

2024 2023

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

Increase in profit Increase in profit

in foreign before in foreign before

exchange income exchange income

rate tax rate tax

BRBE AT 32 A PR i ¥ )

SN BE R 2, HMERER w4,

#9415 (R2) s (I 2)

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT T

Singapore dollar Bk oo 5% 959 5% 1,463

Malaysian ringgit TGP P e A 5% (754) 5% (765)

Thai baht Rk 5% (4,687) 5% (5,172)

Renminbi NG 5% 826 5% 839

Swiss franc Bty % BB 5% 21,683 5% 8,636
Decrease in the above foreign exchange rates b A1 BEE BE 3 5% (2023
by 5% (2023: 5%) would affect the profit B 1 5%) i B BR B AT i A A A

before income tax by the same amount but in AR <5 BREAH 525 1) B 52 28 o

the opposite direction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HXEREEGE
(@ Financial risks (Continued) (@) BIiEEBER )
(ii)  Interest rate risk (i) FIRE G

The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates as the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets other than
bank balances as disclosed in Note 25. The
Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its bank borrowings
as disclosed in Note 33. Bank borrowings
at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk. The Group’s policy
is to obtain the most favorable interest rates
available.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk.

At 31 March 2024, if interest rates of bank
borrowings at variable rates had been 50 basis
points (2023: 50 basis points) higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, profit before
income taxes would have been HK$1.170
million (2023: HK$1.714 million) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HBEMER

SRR ()

(@ Financial risks (Continued) @)

(iii) ~ Credit risk (i) 5 B

103

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties arises from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets
(mainly include deposits with banks and trade
and other receivables) as disclosed in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The table below shows the credit quality and
the maximum exposure to credit risk based
on the Group'’s credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or
effort, and year-end staging classification at the
end of reporting date. The amounts presented
are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HXEREEGE

S5 B ()

(@ Financial risks (Continued) @)

(i) Credlit risk (Continued) (iii) 17 B 57 (7

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 AR
EEFR 2HRABEEFR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-R8 ERE EE LA @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRAT BRAT BRI BB BRT
2024 2024%
Trade receivables (note a) FEdRRR (HHE 2) - - - 92,255 92,255
Financial assets included in -~ EL4#% 4 R ILAbIEN
deposits and other MRk s
receivables (note b) (BH3E b) 60,829 - - - 60,829
Consideration receivable Rl 341,686 - - - 341,686
Cash and cash equivalents BeRB &S HY 67,711 - - - 67,711
470,226 - - 92,255 562,481
2023 20234
Trade receivables (note a) FENRR K (k@) - - - 71,921 71,921
Financial assets included in @44 S LA
deposits and other TR G
receivables (note b) (fff3 b) 49,125 - - - 49,125
Cashand cash equivalents ~ Bi4&: RBI4 (64 85,426 - - - 85,426
134,551 - - 71,921 206,472
Note: Bi5E

(@ The Group applies the simplified approach for
impairment of trade receivables, information
based on the provision matrix is disclosed in

Note 24.

(b) The credit quality of the financial assets
included in deposits and other receivables are
considered to be “normal” when they are not
past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

A 45 [ 1 A 1L 5 oK R A R
ST IR TR M 5 L 9 A A
T TR 1) R 4 5 0 B R
A EE24 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HMBEBER )
(@)  Financial risks (Continued) (@ MR G
(iv)  Liquidity risk (iv) B EEEG

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor A £ B 2 BOR By € W1 B 25 B i
current and expected liquidity requirements to LMz mE Ee®E - LI
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of DRAS G ) A 5 2 ) B 5 £ A LA
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the AR 0 e W R ) 2 i )
short and longer term. AR I
The table below analyses the Group’s financial NRERAEBZ B A
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings e AR B 2 AR - AR5 e &Y
based on the remaining period at the balance HHEAZZH A F R EH
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. HEAT A o AR N BER 1Y B R
The amounts disclosed in the table are the BRI B BT -

contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Repayable Between Between
on demand/ 1and2 2and 5 Over
within 1 year years years 5 years
EZREER/

1T (EFES 2E5ER SELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT i BT i

As at 31 March 2024 202434318
Bank borrowing (note) RATE WD) 251,432 - - -
Lease liabilities HEAR 68,469 38,941 13,849 -
Trade and other payables B9 B AR 115,698 - - -
435,599 38,941 13,849 -

Asat 31 March 2023 1202353 A31H
Bank borrowing (note) BT (WD 355,548 - - -
Lease liabilities YA 56,629 34,154 8,813 -
Trade and other payables B RAM IR 137,198 - - -
549,375 34,154 8,813 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HBEMER )
(@)  Financial risks (Continued) (@ HHERRE
(iv)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) G2 )
Note: RiFRE

Certain bank borrowings contain a repayment
on demand clause which can be exercised at the
bank’s sole discretion. Taking into account the
Group’s consolidated balance sheet, the directors
do not believe that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that
such bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements. The analysis below shows the cash
outflows based on the scheduled repayment. The
amount includes interest payments computed using
contractual rates.

A TR A SR AR RS
AR ERAT R HER AT o RAEA AR
0 B ol % SRR AT 19 4= 00
B> S AR AT & AT R
TEMESOR B ER R i AR R
SE (1 (02 U2 S AT B o
DATR 20 A7 RS AR B )22 B 3
i o A7 B B AL T H R A
FHRLAFLEAT K o

Between Between
Within 1 and 2 2and 3 Over
1 year years years 3 years
1EUT 1226 R 2E3ER 3FEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AT AT o0 AT WA T
At 31 March 2024 7A2024%F3831H 109,933 32,712 26,059 121,198
At 31 March 2023 #202343H31H 129,122 95,003 27,795 128,260
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MERREE )
(b) Categories of financial instruments b) EWMIANE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Financial assets: EREE:
Equity investment at fair 23T (B2 2 FC A 4 T i 7 57 R
value through other Y 3 B
comprehensive income 5,710 3,064
Financial assets at amortised cost: DVBESH BUAS R 4 A&
— Consideration receivable — B AAE 341,686 -
— Trade and other receivables — 55 R A R ISR K
and deposits P& 153,084 121,046
— Cash and cash equivalents — Bl R Y 67,711 85,426
568,191 209,536
Financial liabilities: SRIBE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:  DASESH sAS 5 19 45 LA 1K
— Trade and other payables — B 5 B A A R K 115,698 137,198
— Bank borrowings — AT EK 233,984 342,848
349,682 480,046
Lease liabilities HEaE 113,194 92,768
(c) Fair value (o) 72A¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial AL GRS EEARERAN R &
assets and financial liabilities as disclosed in the B KA Mz REEEEA a2
consolidated balance sheet approximate their ITEMA ©

respective fair value.

1 07 STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2024



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio and this is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings (including current and non-current
borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as ‘shareholders’ funds’ as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

6.

B EBREE (A
d EXRER
7 A 9 14 A A L A R B A [

I AR A D 5 PR AR [ A 7 L
foRE a5 A A SRR AR - ) AR I
A A 45 DL B A 2 B
5o

ﬁrT%%jﬁH*&%‘ﬂﬂﬂ% AR 1T

AR SO PR A e B R 1
%L%ﬁﬁi AT M i 4 S A
BURAEF -

ZF%@U%E‘%%{’E%%%%ZM‘J%

o i B BU AR 4 R AT 5 IR DA AR A
”ﬁnf% o TR T He B HERE (BLHE 55
BEEABEN R ZE LI RE S
OB RS EEYEE o EA
MBS ARGEGERABERTI AN
(R 4] -

The gearing ratio of the Group were as follows: AREEE LRI
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Bank borrowings (Note 33) SRAT R (MT5E33) 233,984 342,848
Less: W
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 25)  Bl&x & Bl &% (EHY (FE25) (67,711) (85,426)
Net debt TS 166,273 257,422
Shareholders’ funds B 4 906,580 424,052
Gearing ratio ERLR 18.3% 60.7%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

@

Fair value hierarchy

The Group’s finance department leading by the
Chief Financial Officer (the “CFQ”) is responsible
for determining the policies and procedures for the
fair value measurement of financial instruments. The
finance controllers report directly to the CFO. At
each reporting date, the finance department analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved
by the CFO.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that
categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets is based on quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting
period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is
the case for unlisted equity securities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DVERE®
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) i 2AFEEEE
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into A AR B ORI T g = A R B
and transfers out of any of the three levels as of the BB E H - HERR A
date of the event or change in circumstances that AR o Fi N P ESF AR 2 B
caused the transfer. Disclosures of level in fair value #
hierarchy:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E 528 38 At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T T AT

Recurring fair value measurements ~ EEMATETE

At 31 March 2024 12024534318
Financial assets SHEE
Equity investment at fair value through 4%/ B H A2 4

other comprehensive income FUBRAI B E

- unlisted equity securities =3 BB S - - 5,710 5,710
Non-financial assets kEREE
Investment properties Rk

— commercial building — M - - 297,800 297,800

- . 303,510 303,510

At 31 March 2023 2023534318
Financial assets tREE
Equity investment at fair value through /A -HE B IAL 2 Hk 4

other comprehensive income FUBREI B

— unlisted equity securities — I ETRARE R - - 3,064 3,064
Non-financial assets FERERE
Investment properties EV8SE/ES

— commercial building —WERE - - 297,900 297,900

- - 300,964 300,964

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for TN BEHEATEFTEZSET 2K
recurring fair value measurements during the year. 3 T ML A g o

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(i)

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values
Financial assets

The valuation of unlisted equity investment at
fair value through other comprehensive income
was determined using a market-based valuation
technique. The valuation requires the directors to
determine comparable public companies based on
industry, size, leverage and strategy, and calculates
an appropriate enterprise value of earnings before
interest, tax, depreciations and amortisation (“EV to
EBITDA”) multiple and price to earnings multiple, for
each comparable company identified. The multiple
is calculated by dividing the market capitalisation
by the profits of the comparable companies. The
multiple is then discounted for non-marketability.
The discounted multiple is applied to the profit of the
unlisted equity investment to measure the fair value
at each reporting period.

Non-financial assets

The fair value of the investment properties is arrived
at on the basis of valuation carried out by Savills
(Macau) Limited (“Savills”) independent valuer
which is not related to the Group. The Group’s
finance department reviews the valuations performed
by Savills for financial reporting purpose. These
valuation results are then reported to the Group’s
management for discussions and review in relation
to the valuation processes and the reasonableness of
valuation results.

The fair value of the investment properties was
arrived by using direct comparison method based on
market observable transactions of similar properties
in the similar conditions and locations of the subject
properties and adjusted to reflect the conditions of
the subject properties including property size and
property floor level. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is
their current use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. ADYEFEE
(iii) Reconciliation of financial assets and non-financial (i) BFEIBAFETEZEHEERE
assets measured at level 3 SREEHER
Equity
investment
at fair value

through other

comprehensive Investment
income properties
BOTE
EBEMEE
e 51 R A9
BHRE REM*
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT AT
At 1 April 2022 J#20224F4 51 H 1,593 283,100
Revaluation surplus transfer to equity 2 PO RE P EE A AR 1,471 -
Change in fair value recognised in TR AR R Y AP (52 )
income statement - 14,800
At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 202343 H31H K&20234F4 H1H 3,064 297,900
Revaluation surplus transfer to equity 2 AR A i 2,646 -
Change in fair value recognised in TR R R AR AT E)
income statement - (100)
At 31 March 2024 M202453H31H 5,710 297,800

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Valuation processes

The Group’s finance department is responsible for the
fair value measurement of financial assets required
for financial purposes, including Level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial department reports
directly to the CFO and the audit committee (“AC").
Discussions of valuation processes and results are
held between the CFO and AC at least once every six
months, in line with the Group’s half-yearly reporting
periods.

The main inputs used in fair value measurement by
the Group are derived and evaluated as follows:

J price to earnings multiple

o EV to EBITDA multiple

J non-marketability discount rate
Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
Financial assets

The most significant unobservable input is EV
to EBITDA multiple of 1 (2023: 1), and non-
marketability discount rate of 32% (2023: 32%). The
lower the EV to EBITDA multiple, the lower the fair
value of the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The lower of the non-
marketability discount rate or non-controlling interest
discount, the higher the fair value of the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

As at 31 March 2024, if the non-marketability
discount rate increase/(decrease) by 1%, it would
result in (decrease)/increase in fair value by
HK$82,000 (2023: HK$45,000).

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DVHEEGR)
(v)  Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value (v) fRE#RAREREXNFENRERGE
(Continued)
Non-financial assets A
Significant Range of Relationship of
unobservable unobservable unobservable
Valuation technique(s) input(s) inputs inputs to fair value
ED L FABE FOBERBARE
BRI LIPN ¢ BARBZEE BEAHENBE
2024 2023
Direct comparison method based 1. Unit rate From HK$35,000 to From HK$35,000 to 1. The higher the unit rate,
on market observable transactions HK$218,000 per ~ HK$217,000 per the higher the fair value
of similar properties and adjust to square feet square feet
reflect the conditions of the subject 2. Frontage 2. The larger the shop
property. frontage, the higher the
fair value
REEYEN TBREN S XA EME 1. BAER B¥ERA PR 1. BT -
A ERR EEL IURE /R S BE35,000TE  #W35000CE  ATEBR
IR o #%218,0007 #4217,0007C
2. #li 2. HRTEER - e

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified
as the executive directors of the Company. The executive
directors review the Group’s financial information mainly
from business nature and geographical perspectives.
From a perspective on business nature, the Group has
two reportable segments, namely watch retail and
watch wholesale trading segments. From a geographical
perspective, management mainly assesses the performance
of watch retail operations in (i) Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China and (ii) the rest of Asia.

Revenue represents sales of goods from watch retail
segment and watch wholesale trading segment. Sales
between operating segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those prevailing in arm’s length transactions.
The executive directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of adjusted
earnings before interest and tax (“EBIT”). This measurement
basis excludes unallocated income and net corporate
expenses.

Unallocated income represents dividend income from
unlisted equity investment, gain on disposal of assets held
for sale and a subsidiary and re-measurement of deferred
consideration payable in respect of acquisition of a
subsidiary in prior years. Net corporate expenses mainly
represent corporate staff costs and provision for senior
management bonus. Unallocated assets represent property,
plant and equipment, investment properties and right-of-
use assets at corporate level, unlisted equity investment,
deferred tax assets and cash and cash equivalents.
Unallocated liabilities represent lease liabilities, other
payables and accruals at corporate level, bank borrowings,
deferred tax liabilities and income tax payable.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDIERH)

For the year ended 31 March 2024 BZE202453A31BLEEE

Watch retail
EEHRTE
Hong Kong,
Macau and Watch
Mainland Rest of  wholesale
China Asia trading Total
RAR =M Eifod
HE KR HepthE — MEER a&t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFT  B¥fFfr B BB
Revenues from contracts with ERMBRMEEDE15H
customers within the scope BEANTFAORE
of HKFRS 15
- Gross segment — /AR 321,506 221,506 403,231 946,243
- Inter-segment | - - (178,682)  (178,682)
Sales to external customers HETIHIREF 321,506 221,506 224,549 767,561
Timing of revenue recognition LON AL
— Ata point in time — {1 IR i 321,506 221,506 224,549 767,561
Segment results DERE 8,035 (10,610) 27,230 24,655
Unallocated income EHON 528,308
Net corporate expenses SEEATEOT (41,264)
Finance costs A LA (29,993)
Profit before tax BRBLATR R 481,706
Income tax expense FIr 58 3 (8,381)
Profit for the year FERF 473,325

OB () A RA TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDEIER A
For the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued) BZE2024F3A318 LFE #)
Watch retail
EHZE
Hong Kong,

Macau and Watch

Mainland Rest of wholesale
China Asia trading  Unallocated Total

B BAR EEY | B
hE AR HEBHE MBER AAE a5t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BEffr  BEfr  ERfr  BRfx  BRfix

Additional of non-current assets: &I RBIEE

— property, plant and equipment  — 43 ~ 3% Kk (16,399) (9,618) (3,124) (1,283) (30,424)

~ right-of-use assets — R (60,232) (26,628) (2,026) - (88,886)
Depreciation: {r -

— property, plant and equipment  —#13 ~ H&# Rk (5,445) (5,206) (738) (10,648) (22,037)

— right-of-use assets i diiliA (32,488) (25,253) (4,346) - (62,087)
Impairment of: Wl -

— property, plant and equipment  —#1% + ## Rk (3,674) (1,369) - (1,689) (6,732)

— intangible assets — AR - - - (1,083) (1,083)

~ right-of-use assets —ffi R (13,167) 4,889) - - (18,056)

— trade receivable —TECE 5 IRk (265) - (945) - (1,210

— consideration receivable — R - - - (5,203) (5,203)
Fair value change of investment &M 3EA T-EEH)

properties (400) - - 300 (100)
Reversal of provision/(provision) {7 EtE i [/

for inventories vestei i) 13,985 (139) 7,075 - 20,921
Segment assets R ERE 402,059 138,716 227,099 660,751 1,428,625
Segment liabilities HaE (104,248) (55,106) (60,433)  (296,553)  (516,340)

1 1 7 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDIERH)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B 2202343 31 H IL4EEE

Watch retail
EREE
Hong Kong,
Macau and Watch
Mainland Rest of  wholesale
China Asia trading Total
- AP 4 CEV) Fi573
HE K pE HepwE iR &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BB BT BT B¥fx
Revenues from contracts with BRPKEEENE15HE
customers within the scope AMEF SRS
of HKFRS 15
— Gross segment — /AR 274,023 255,136 457,342 986,501
— Inter-segment v i - - (181,047)  (181,047)
Sales to external customers HETHIRER 274,023 255,136 276,295 805,454
Timing of revenue recognition LON AL
— Ata point in time — TP {1 R ] A 274,023 255,136 276,295 805,454
Segment results A ERE (14,713) 6,546 40,975 32,808
Unallocated income EHON 79,184
Net corporate expenses SEEATEOT (31,148)
Finance costs W A (21,273)
Profit before tax BRBEATIER 59,571
Income tax expense eSS (8,466)
Profit for the year FERF 51,105

OB () A RA TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDEIER A
For the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued) BE20234E3 31 H R4 EE (38)
Watch retail
EHZE
Hong Kong,

Macau and Watch

Mainland Rest of wholesale
China Asia trading  Unallocated Total

B BAR EEY | B
hE AR HEBHE MBER AAE a5t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BEffr  BEfr  ERfr  BRfx  BRfix

Additional of non-current assets: &I RBIEE

— property, plant and equipment  — 43 ~ 3% Kk (2,645) (3,201) (582) (796) (7,224)

~ right-of-use assets — i E (27,314) (35,190) (9,726) - (72,230
Depreciation: {r -

— property, plant and equipment  —#13 ~ H&# Rk (3,664) (3,820) (476) (10,731) (18,691)

— right-of-use assets i diiliA (24,667) (26,958) (4,166) - (55,791)
Impairment of: Wl -

— property, plant and equipment  —#1% + ## Rk (320) - - - (320)

— intangible assets — WG - - (3,878) - (3,878)

~ right-of-use assets — iR E (1,897) (3,673) - - (5,570)
Fair value change of investment B &Y A TFEES)

properties 10,600 - - 4,200 14,800
Reversal of provision for 7 B A o 3¢

inventories 6,821 109 1,244 - 8,174
Segment assets SR EE 353,007 139,400 227,068 343,648 1,063,123
Segment liabilities b fi (78,261) (57,497) (81,857) (415445 (633,060)

1 1 9 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARZHBEFR )
Geographical information b B B
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and segment results by 223t 5 73 A 4R WSO B o B SEARAN T

geographical area are as follows:

Revenue Segment results
L'ON T EBRAR
2024 2023 2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BWffRx BT

Hong Kong, Macau and Tk~ WP IR R
Mainland China 423,092 383,180 21,992 435
Rest of Asia SN R R 343,670 421,076 1,877 34,306
Europe T 799 1,198 786 (1,933)
767,561 805,454 24,655 32,808
An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other i b 8 73 A7 52 [ U (PR A EDE
than equity investment at fair value through other A 4 T i A A MR 0 T 4~ IR AE B IH
comprehensive income, deferred tax assets, consideration BE - YR - R 5 BRSO iR R
receivable, trade receivable and refundable deposits) by FREBRID TR
geographical area is as follows:
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China 7 ~ [ J g K 504,304 500,966
Rest of Asia Y AR [ 78,566 78,032
Europe R 37,283 37,117
620,153 616,115
The revenue information above is based on the locations of RO ERE T AR T TE A o
the customers.
These were no revenue transactions with a single external R AR g AR F RO B
customer which amounted to 10% or more of the Group's ASE BB 10%E LA (2023 4F : H) o

revenue during the year (2023: Nil).

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDEIER A
Geographical information (Continued) HwEER )
Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities e BRI RN A A TR B A L HERB A -

at the beginning of the reporting period:

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Sales of watches 5 g 6k 1,345 1,280
Performance obligations [ ESES
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery JBEH AT IR S AT B R A > AR EZE L)
of the goods and payment is mainly on cash and credit Bl s I RESE - MIBRE PR - K
card settlement, except for wholesale customers, where ST B E SRR 1202443 A 31
payment is due within credit period from delivery. As at F A 780 6 R 4 AT RIS 2 sl 20 AR ) 25
31 March 2024, the remaining performance obligations JEUR)FE I AR (] 2% — AR BRLA N 15 20 10
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) are part of contracts — B3 o AR e AR R A HE I 251 5 R
that have an original expected duration of one year or less, RETLTEE » W2 543 Bl i 38 55 (B o
the transaction price allocated to which is not presented
according to practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
9.  OTHER GAINS 9. Hfttls
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Exchange losses 51 Je 18 (12,128) (454)
Fair value changes of investment BB N THEEH)

properties (100) 14,800
Gain on disposal of: AT

— property, plant and equipment — W)~ AR S 122 67

— a subsidiary (Note 34(c)) — B 2w (B EE34(c) 509,487 -

— assets held for sale (Note 26) — R R it B A (B 5E26) - 78,689
Gain on termination of leases KA A Al 70 213
Re-measurement of deferred consideration = #7 T E 4t MEATHAE (5 B LA

payable in respect of acquisition of A RS T R 2 WD) (BFRE32(d))

a subsidiary in prior years (Note 32(d) 17,340 -

514,791 93,315
1 21 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. OTHER INCOME 10. HAKA

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T fioki K s
Building management fee income MEFE AL 2,580 2,580
Interest income FEWA 1,589 252
Rental income FHAIRA 5,671 4,859
Dividend income B A 1,481 495
Rent concessions FHA W 2 124 1,960
Shared service income ILZRBULA 15,316 14,400
Government subsidies (note) R AR B (B 5 118 7,452
Sundries MEIE 1,986 2,158
28,865 34,156

Note: B 5E

There is no government grant in respect of COVID-19 related
subsidies relates to Employment Support Scheme provided by
Hong Kong, Malaysia, Singapore and Macau governments for the
year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: HK$6.947 million).

#2024 3 H31 HIL4EE > S M0 S &5
AT ERT ~ PR AT R I BT 2 g
AR o0 S ST R0 2R e TR B 2 155 1T it 2 BT
AL (20234 : #H6.94716 ) -

11.  FINANCE COSTS 11. B
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T bioki K s

Interest on: FIE

— bank borrowings —SRATHK 21,507 15,127
— lease liabilities —fEAE 8,486 6,146
29,993 21,273
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax has been derived after
debiting or (crediting) the following items in the income

statement.

12. BRBIADER

AR BRBE AT A 2 ANER 7 GEA) Wi
HRIRIEA -

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Auditor’s remuneration: BT -
— audit services — IR 2,204 2,110
- non-audit services — IR 530 776
Cost of inventories sold and raw A7 B A B M EHE AR
materials consumed 381,888 440,309
Depreciation of: e -
— property, plant and equipment —Wy3E - R Kt (BFE17)
(Note 17) 22,037 18,691
— right-of-use assets (Note 19) — R E (fsE19) 62,087 55,791
Employee benefit expenses (Note 13) e B AR A2 (B EE13) 183,893 195,704
Fair value changes of investment PG N TESEE) (HEE18)
properties (Note 18) 100 (14,800)
Impairment loss of: WAH
— property, plant and equipment —Wy3E - R Rt (BFE17)
(Note 17) 6,732 320
— right-of-use assets (Note 19) — i REE R (fsE19) 18,056 5,570
— intangible assets (Note 20) — e (320 1,083 3,878
— consideration receivable (Note 22) — FEACARAE (Ff5E22) 5,203 -
— trade receivable (Note 24(b)) — B S B (Bt 24(b)) 1,210 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - B Kt
plant and equipment WA (122) (67)
Gain on termination of leases AR E A A (70) (213)
Lease rental in respect of land and BRI 1 AT
buildings A B A 4
— short-term lease payments — B E K 26,388 27,151
— variable lease payments CIE-Zitk=enEe 5,260 5,303
— rent concession (Note 10) — & (k10 (124) (1,960)
Reversal of provision for inventories AL ABEAR [T 8 (BfHE23)
(Note 23) (20,921) (8,174)

1 23 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES EEEFZH
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Salaries and allowances W B R 167,944 177,738
Pension contributions less forfeiture BARE UK bR EwE AR

utilised (note a) B0 (fika) 13,322 14,936
Others HoA 2,627 3,030
183,893 195,704

(@) Pensions-defined contribution plans (@ BIKkE-—EHEMHRETE

The Group operates a retirement scheme under
Occupation Retirement Scheme Ordinance (“ORSO
scheme”) up to 30 November 2000 for employees
in Hong Kong. With effect from 1 December 2000,
a mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme is set
up which is available to eligible employees of the
Group, including executive directors of the Company.
No further employees and contributions have been
added to the ORSO scheme after the set up of MPF.
Contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group
and employees are calculated at rates specified in
the rules of the MPF scheme. The assets of the MPF
scheme and ORSO scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund.

Meanwhile, relevant employees of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong contribute to the local pension
schemes, contributions to the local pension schemes
are calculated at rates specified in the rules of the
local pension schemes. The assets of the pension
scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, forfeited
contributions totaling HK$1.424 million (2023:
HK$295,000) arising from employees leaving the
ORSO scheme, were utilised to offset contributions
during the year.

HZE20004F11H30H &1k > A 4EH
R 45 Tk 2 R AR B0 A6k 1) 2% 5 S T R
BEAGEARTEE - H20004FE12H1
HOH > AR 4 [ 5% 57 58 ) A B 4 w1
B (R FHE ) > AL M0 A G
8 B (BIFAAFAITH#ES) HE S
B o BERE AT B NI R > BREEIR IR
1 37 A0 34 R B Bl o AT [ KR
B 1) R T A B A AT R R
T 4w R U BT R ) KRS - T
TR 5T S 2 s B A 48 [ 1) B 2 4 PR
A s EHEsa Ty -

B AN B 2 /i > A SR P
Je A B S R AR w1 A {1
Ao TR R R AR R B AR
B KFREE o B R Gl 2 B SR
S EE A - A R S
REAREM -

HME20243A31HILEERN > EE
LR R 03 i 2 Bk S AR AR R B it
R 4241 800 (20234F © ¥
295,00070) > B4 B LGB 4F A 11t

E
BN ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 13. BERAXZH @
(b)  Five highest paid individuals b HEEUESHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were AR FE AL [ 4 B N L
the highest in the Group for the year include two W% (20234F : — &) #H - HHEE
directors (2023: one director) whose emoluments % EL A B 1 453 B7 rp s o i AR T JE
are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 14. The 7 FLBR B e BT = 4% (20234 ¢ 1Y
emoluments payable to the remaining three (2023: Z) N T Z BT
four) highest paid individuals during the year are as
follows:
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T WA
Basic salaries, allowances and FAF A B B
benefits in kind 3,899 5,327
Performance bonuses RIBUEAL 5,471 4,657
Contributions to pension plans EL Yo i DR B 177 192
9,547 10,176
The emoluments fell within the following bands: P NI RN NG o N
Number of individuals
AE
2024 2023
Emolument bands (in HK dollars) FEAR A G )
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 TCE#E1,500,0007C - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 70 E ##2,000,0007C - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 #H52,000,001 0 £ #H52,500,0007C - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 #%2,500,001 7T % #%53,000,0007C 1 1
Over HK$3,000,000 #3,000,0007C LA E 2 1
3 4
1 25 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14. ESEANRER
(@ Directors’ emoluments @ EE#ME
The remuneration of every director of the Company is AR FEISEEM ST

set out below:

Emoluments paid or payable i respect of a person's servces as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking:
FAEENRAARNERIERRNER

Emoluments

paid or payable

in respect of

director's other

services in

connection with

Remunerations  the management
paid or payable ~ of the affairs of

Basic salaries, ~~ Contributions inrespectof ~ the Company
allowances,and ~ toretirement  Discreionary  accepting office  orifs subsidiary
Name Fee  henefitsinkind  eneft schemes bonus as director undertaking Total
SGEL L
FATGENR
Bxfd AREEN
Befe 2% Eife EELSE AR
it4 e AR 5 BEEL  ESRUME Ritime a8
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

BT 1o v v kv ki i

For the year ended 31 March 2024 BZ202453R31R

Joseph C. C. Wong ) A 100 1,159 5 - - - 1312
Suriyan Joshua Kanjanapas i}~ ) - - - 407 - - 407
Liao Ching Mei i B i) 467 0 W - - 662
Kwan Chi Kin, Wallace (i) BEE) 52 1078 M 1,760 - - 2934
Ho Chi Kin, Jeff frsee 135 - - - - - 135
Lai i Ming, Rcky Rt 13 - - - - - 15
Cheung Ho Ling, Honnus )~ AT (v 135 - - - - - 135

585 2,704 17 2314 - - 5720

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EF2023431131

Joseph C. C. Wong i Al 100 750 Iy - - - 81
Kwan ChiKin, Wallace ()~ () 8 1559 5 1,94 - - 3,648
Ho Chiin,Jef e 13 - - - - - 13
Lai Kai Ming, Ricky LU 13 - - - - - 13
Kwong i Hang, Agnestv) BTy 51 - - - - - 51
Cheung HoLing Honnus v~ &%y 8 - - - - - 8

55 2309 106 1,94 - - 494

B () A RA A
2024 AR 126
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

14.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

(o)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(i) Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong is also the chief executive
officer of the Group.

(i) Mr. Suriyan Joshua Kanjanapas was appointed as the
Company’s non-executive director on 20 October
2021 and re-designated from a non-executive
director to an executive director on 25 April 2024.
During the year ended 31 March 2023, no directors’
remuneration was paid to him in the capacity as
director.

(iii)  Ms. Liao Ching Mei has been appointed as executive
director and chief financial officer of the Group from
24 November 2023.

(iv)  Mr. Kwan Chi Kin, Wallace has resigned as executive
director and chief financial officer of the Group on
24 November 2023.

(v)  Dr. Kwong Yi Hang, Agnes has retired by rotation
as an independent non-executive director of the
Company upon the expiry of her term of office on 16
August 2022.

(vi)  Ms. Cheung Ho Ling, Honnus has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 16 August 2022.

During the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March
2023, none of the directors waived their emoluments,
except for Mr. Joseph C.C. Wong waived a portion
of his salary of HK$579,267 for the year ended 31
March 2024 (2023: HK$750,000).

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2023: Nil).

Consideration provided to receivable by third
parties for making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for
making available directors” services (2023: Nil).

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

14.

EEENRERS )

(@

(b)

(9]

BEEME D

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BRI ST SR AL AT ECRA -

WA 20214E10 H 20 H M %
A Ry A LS | JEAT BUE# F 3 iR 202 44F
4H25H AT B H AT AT
W o AEE20234E3 31 H IE4E
BE > B A DL SE S B 4 A
4o

BEinak k20234511 H24 H#EZ
AT AT IBUEE 5 B o i B S 4

B B SRR A 20234611 H 24 H BT
AT S J i A A -

B S AT R 20224E8 16 BAEH
Jie I o (L 32 AT A ) 28 57 FF A7 B
o

R4 4R 20224E8 H 16 H #EZE
(T BN RIB AT -

HE202443A31H &202343 A31
H AR > MM AT ] 8 = 00 S5E M 45
FRE I e R 2202443 A31H
1A B RCGE HR A 3 & 579,267
JG (20234 : #H#750,0000) °

EERNBEARBERBER

AEIA > MEHEHE H B ISR SO Y IRAT AT
RRAE ) S BB AR R (2023 4F : 4E) o

RENESREAE =N 2RE

HE2024F3H31HILFERE > AN
SIf 4B 8 T S R A T e AT A 5 =
YAHMUAE (20234 ¢ 4) o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

14.

15.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)) 14, EBEANRER H)

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other (d) FBBRUNES ZEEFEE2SZEFMNEE
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies REBMBERASBRAZEN  £EX
corporate and connected entities REMR S 2 ER
During the year ended 31 March 2024, there are no ME2024F3H31 H IFFEFE > D
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements R BR% G R
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate HE M B2 te N2 K > MER R L H
by and controlled entities with such directors (2023: 32 5 ZHE (20234F - ) -

Nil).

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions, () EBEXRZ WHBRIAESRAMEAFZ
arrangements or contracts
Except as disclosed in Note 36, no other significant BRI RE36 P45 5a & A - AR B A B4R
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation G > ALY BN AR ET AT AT S AR
to the Group’s business to which the Company was W 2 S5 1A B 2 g e A
a party and in which a director of the Company had TEH A E ARG HELS ~
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, R G
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 15, FrSHix i

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT

Current income tax AR RLIH

— Hong Kong profits tax — HHEFIERL 3,923 3,649

— Overseas profits tax Ik 2,317 5,314

— Under provision in prior years — AR A D 1,731 98
7,971 9,061
Deferred tax (Note 29) RAIEBLIH (Hf5E29) 410 (595)
8,381 8,466

B () A RA A
2024 AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 15. FREBIH (@)
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2024 is 20244 B B HE AT B T ML 8 A w1 1 LB i )
calculated at 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) of the estimated FERi216.5% (20234F : 16.5%) 715 © 4
assessable profits for the year. Taxation on overseas FIAFBE T3 ARDRAF A0 b w8 R i 1) 4 A
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable o] 5 e b [ ()38 R B R T o

profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit AR ) B KRR B Jag 2 ) BT A Ml m R A
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in [ 2 LA T #3257 T 0 w5 1) B T A
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are i ) B T B4 T R RS B BUIE A 22
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates are as Al SREiRaE
follows:
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT AT
Profit before tax B i i ) 481,706 59,571
Tax at the statutory tax rates of 16.5% TR TERLZ16.5% (20234 © 16.5%)

(2023: 16.5%) FHEMBLIE 79,481 9,829
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries Bt i/ 5] A [R] B R 14 52 2% (74,579) (2,012)
Tax effect arising from: BB BEE A

— Non-taxable income — 4T SR A A (17,269) (19,611)

— Non-deductible expenses — ANAT AL A BH 3 8,162 7,772

— Recognition of temporary differences — ERRAT AT A U AR 10 IR 1

not previously recognised b 1,721 (961)

— Utilisation of previously unrecognised — — i i A4 A ERR B IE 5 8

tax losses (533) (2,402)

— Tax losses not recognised — AR I B e 15 9,652 16,721

— Tax reduction — BB A 9) (18)

- Others — ot 24 (950)

— Under provision in prior years —IBTEAE R D 1,731 98
Income tax expense PR EE S i 8,381 8,466

1 29 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME
-

16.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
Group'’s profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

16.

BREF
X
B B B R DUAE AR 22 R HE i 5 A B

A A AR T A B A 9 A 3 20 o - 24
B EH - o

2024 2023

Profit attributable to equity holders AN R RE S A AL 1 )

of the Company (HK$/000) (& ¥ 7T) 473,151 50,795
Weighted average number of ordinary E BT 4 BT 1

shares in issue (thousands) (AT BERT) 1,046,474 1,046,474
Basic earnings per share attributable to AN FIRERR 35 A A EAS 45

the equity holders of the Company BEAR R (L)

(HK cents) 45.21 4.85
Diluted e

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March
2024 and 31 March 2023 are the same as the basic
earnings per share amounts as there were no potentially
dilutive ordinary shares in issues during two years.

HE202443 H31H %20234E3 H31H 1E4F
JE 5 B I R 4 R B A R A R R 4
FEARE > R 7 T A8 4 B A NI 406 v 7 4
A B o

OB () A RA TR

2024 AR 130
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17.

131

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. W% WBREE

Freehold, Equipment,

leasehold leasehold

land and improvements

buildings and others Total

MEEE

1 HE #EHE
TiRETFT REERRREM #x

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT
Cost D%
At 1 April 2022 #202244 4 1H 265,170 247,412 512,582
Additions RE - 7,224 7,224
Disposals/written off HE R - (16,623) (16,623)
Exchange realignment EE i, 75 45 (1,810) (2,540) (4,350)
At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 A20234F3 H31H /202344 H1H 263,360 235,473 498,833
Additions WE - 30,424 30,424
Disposals/written off /R - (16,182) (16,182)
Exchange realignment i 5t 2% (3,621) (4,088) (7,709)
At 31 March 2024 R2024%F38318 259,739 245,627 505,366
Accumulated depreciation and EERRE

impairment losses

At 1 April 2022 #20224F41H 78,933 236,901 315,834
Charge for the year AT 10,958 7,733 18,691
Disposals/written off R - (16,616) (16,616)
Impairment loss (Note a) E (i ika) - 320 320
Exchange realignment Bl i, 25 48 (676) (2,403) (3,079)
At31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 1202343431 H %20234£4 7 1H 89,215 225,935 315,150
Charge for the year AEESTE 10,930 11,107 22,037
Disposals/written off R - (16,153) (16,153)
Impairment loss (Note a) WE (M ska) - 6,732 6,732
Exchange realignment fEE 5t 2% (1,793) (3,734) (5,527)
At 31 March 2024 R2024%F3A8318 98,352 223,887 322,239
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 March 2024 R20245F3831A8 161,387 21,740 183,127
At 31 March 2023 #202343H31H 174,145 9,538 183,683

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Note:

(a)

As at 31 March 2024, carrying amounts of retail stores
assets represent property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets of approximately HK$152.815 million (2023:
HK$151.392 million) and HK$82.170 million (2023:
HK$70.336 million) respectively.

The Group regards its individual retail stores as separately
identifiable CGUs and the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs is determined with reference to their value-in-use.
Management carried out an impairment assessment for the
retail stores assets, including property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets, which exhibited an impairment
indicator. Management performed impairment assessment
for under-performing retail stores, such as stores making a
loss and early closure of stores before the lease term. The
carrying amount of the retail stores assets is written down
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The
estimates of the recoverable amount of retail stores assets
were based on value-in-use calculations using discounted
cash flow projections based on the forecasts approved by
management covering the remaining tenure of the lease,
with 14% (2023: 13%) discount rate.

Due to a slowdown in the watch retailing operations, the
Group has revised its value-in-use of those retail stores
that exhibited impairment indicator. As a result, during
the year ended 31 March 2024, impairment of property,
plant and equipment of approximately HK$6.732 million
(2023: HK$320,000) and impairment of right-of-use assets
of approximately HK$18.056 million (2023: HK$5.570
million) were made as their carrying values are not expected
to be fully recoverable. Impairment loss was included
in other operating expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

Key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations for
the recoverable amount as follow:

. Revenue: based on estimated sales with reference to
recent average yearly performance in all regions.

. Running cost: based on the estimated change related
to the Group’s cost saving plan and measures.

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment pledged as security for
the Group’s bank borrowings (Note 33) amounted to
HK$136.014 million (2023: HK$145.718 million).

17.

I - MR RRE D)

U

(a)

202443 H31H > FEEHMKYE -
s B Al B i ) RE Y 7 Y B T L 43
A s 152.81540 B0 (20234 « i
#151.39240 #J0) fE 82,1 7016 85T
(20234 : #¥70.3361HET) °

AR A A LA 5 2B 0 25 8 o7 ] ik Al B
G R A o T AT I 2 B A AR LA S
BBEZELTYEZAMO A EMER S - &
T ST B A I B (A
W ~ W B DA B R ) A T IRk
ERRAG o 45 S0 3 s 4R Y 05 S 2 FH B 1 4
FIT B PR 25 R BN 10 265 05 a1 T el (E T
Al o i 28 i A A 7 ) B T PR LA 5T
AL [ A o JU) 516 R T O &5 T i [m]
AEE o T RO AT T g [l A A ol
(BB 5 - SRR 8 406 A B o Yo 2 L 6
ol A3 A7 1 0 I T P BB A v o BB
FH14% (20234 13%) o

HRFEEELEHIE - AEECBTTA
I 5 1) 2 B T A 88 PRI » PRI
2024331 HILFESE - W2k -
K IR 4 2 i 6.7 324F 0 (2023
4E 1 EH5320,00070) BT A & E E A
Ly 18.05640 # T (20234 #¥55.570
B E5T0) o R A JEL IR T {1 T A v 2 Sl
MAE A o AR 2RSS Al &
F HAth 2548 2 e o

S <4 8 A 0 9
T -

. WA = AR T A M I T T 3 4 A
A8 B R B R

o B AR M A AR
B S H AT B £ 5L -

202443 H31H » AREEWZE - HA K
SR T (1 36.0141A #5598 (20234
MK 14571846 #o0) B KA SR AT LASERL
B3 3 IR AR 42 181 ) 8R4 715 4 o

B () A RA A
2024 AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REWZE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT AT
At 1 April R4H1H 297,900 283,100
Changes in fair value APEES) (100) 14,800
At 31 March R3HA31TH 297,800 297,900
The investment properties were revalued at the end of the % PG W) FE A SR o R ST B S E AR
reporting date by independent professionally qualified fhERTEE -
valuer.
(i) Amount recognised in consolidated income () REVERUBERTEINEHE
statement for investment properties
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Rental income FHARA 4,292 3,684
Direct operating expenses from properties 4G ILA Y ZEZ
which generated rental income EIREE SO (389) (343)
3,903 3,341
1 33 STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2024



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18. REYRGD)
(i) Lease arrangements Gy HEERH
Commitments for minimum lease payments A B B W) S B ISR AR A B R AR 5l
receivable on leases of the investment properties are IR EE35(a) ©

set out in Note 35(a).

The Group leases out its properties under operating ALEMTER S EE T Y
leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases B A WORAR 4 o B B2 £3
typically run for an initial period of 2 to 3 years. .

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as R A E G A D ERERA A
a result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are RIShBEE w1 MR R & H
denominated in the respective functional currencies BL PR AR Z SN ERR o THE S 43
of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain AN ERREIE R - A B AT R A
residual value guarantee and/or lessees’ option to NIRERERAR I B a2k -

purchase the property at the end of lease term.

(iii) Pledge (iii) 3K
The Group’s investment properties have been AL WY S T KIS SR T LA
pledged as security for the Group’s bank borrowings HCRAT B (Ff3E33) -
(Note 33).

B () A RA A
2024 AR 134
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19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. FREEE

2024 2023

HK$/000 HK$'000

BT Fioki K s

At 1 April R4H1TH 85,668 77,593
Addition wE 88,886 72,230
Termination of leases HIEFEAH (658) (1,715)
Depreciation charge for the year AT (62,087) (55,791)
Impairment losses (Note 17(a)) WAE (BEE17() (18,056) (5,570)
Exchange differences [ifE 58,2250 (2,441) (1,079)
At 31 March A3A31H 91,312 85,668

The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the following

Ll w8 A o B P R DL BB Y

types of assets: FE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Land use rights -l fe I HE 264 517

Property: Wk

— office premises — A E 8,553 14,358
— retail stores — B L5 82,170 70,336
Motor vehicles A 325 457
91,312 85,668

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2024




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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19.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Lease liabilities of HK$113.194 million (2023: HK$92.768
million) are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
HK$91.312 million (2023: HK$85.668 million) as at 31
March 2024. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

For both years, the Group leases various offices and retail
stores for its operations. Generally, lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 3 years but may
have extension and termination options as described
below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

Some leases include an option to renew the lease for an
additional period after the end of the contract term. Where
practicable, the Group seeks to include such extension
options exercisable by the Group to provide operational
flexibility. The Group assesses at lease commencement
date whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options. If the Group is not reasonably certain to
exercise the extension options, the future lease payments
during the extension periods are not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities. The potential exposure to
these future lease payments is summarised below:

19.

EREEE (&)

202443 H31H > ¥ 113.194{a 8 0
(20234 : #¥r92 76810 #T) & & &
O [R A H91 3 12F 0 (2023 4F « i
85.66811 # JT) 1AM BE {5 FH HE & 2 T DA il
TR o %S R W v N AT T B o M
AR A C B R R 0 R 45 PR
P il = < g0 N G Y = W ENEOD R (i

=]
AR e

AR AEEBEEZ ML E LT
BT EE - — S, HESAEE
Z3AEI 2 AR IRT oL > MR R SO
WY IE 2 J2 A 1R B o AR AR ) )5 4% 4 il
FLHERGE > B R I B AN [ e B M
P o it 5 AL AF 309 B AT A AT SR 3 ] Y
R - ARG HRE & 400 E ] X E S
A m] s AT R

o R AL R A AR A5 R AR SR RS
] 2 AL 5 1 JBE4R HE o B IR W AT 9 17 DL
o ARG R A AT A B I AT % 5
EREFEMEAE - DRSS
AL B AL PR R F AT A 2 7 A B E
REAT (o AE fR I8 4R HE o i A 42 I 30k 5 B e
TEAT B AE R BEARHE - SR U [H] 1A 9 R SR A
BEffmA g AHERMNG RN - 2%
RAHE AT S T SR B Rl T

B () A RA A
2024 AR
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19.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

19.

Lease liabilities
recognised (discounted)

ERAEEE (&)

Potential future lease
payments under extension
options not included

in lease liabilities
(undiscounted)

TEETHEaEPES

mRH BREEETBENRR

HEaERH) AERRCRER)

2024 2023 2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT L RO BT AT

Office premises WAE 499 2,366 4,032 4,032
Retail stores TEEH 11,180 7,100 16,090 11,150

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option, upon the
occurrence of either a significant event or a significant
change in circumstances that is within the control of the
lessee. During the year ended 31 March 2024, there has
been no such triggering event.

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in Note
34(b).

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group leased
a number of retail stores which contain variable lease
payment terms that are based on sales generated from the
retail stores and minimum annual lease payment terms that
are fixed. These payment terms are common in retail shops
in the regions where the Group operates. The amount of
COVID-19 related rent concession recognised is disclosed
in Note 10. The amount of short-term and variable lease
payments recognised in consolidated income statement is
disclosed in Note 12.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

BEA > AR N 042 o] A B N A K
PR LA OB > AN SR T B AL R
AP E BEAT M E R EERE - R
202443 A31 H IRFEREE > MR4EAT Bl 55
{4 -

B B4 AL ) KRR B W A EORHTE I RE34(b)
B -

202443 A311HERE - AEMMEL
2B 5 - (0 0 SE 5 B 9T A B
A1 AT B B AN B R % [ AR AR
BT MK o 3% 558 AT B 7 7S 4. [ 45
ST AE b B L o B3 TR e R 7 A 0 17 A B
(O FH & e B REAE I RE 1O 4R - RS
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. |EEE
Technical
Know-how  Trademarks Goodwill Total
BERM 5 [5ES Fob)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ikt ATV {413 TN (44 IR (4 4 I

Cost B
At 1 April 2022 202244 H1H 74,895 85,164 10,555 170,614
Exchange realignment HEE 5 2 7 - 208 846 1,054
At 31 March 2023 and %202343 731 H %20234F

1 April 2023 4A1H 74,895 85,372 11,401 171,668
Exchange alignment HEE 5.7 3 - 132 - 132
At 31 March 2024 R2024%3A8318 74,895 85,504 11,401 171,800

Accumulated amortisation and ~ BiHFERRE
impairment loss

At 1 April 2022 #20224E4H1H 74,895 44,377 - 119,272
Charge for the year A BE - - - -
Impairment loss AE - 3,878 - 3,878
At 31 March 2023 and 202343 H31H %2023 4

1 April 2023 4H1H 74,895 48,255 - 123,150
Charge for the year AR 5 - - - -
Impairment loss BE - - 1,083 1,083
At 31 March 2024 R2024F3H318 74,895 48,255 1,083 124,233
Carrying amount fREE
At 31 March 2024 R202453A31H - 37,249 10,318 47,567
At 31 March 2023 202343 H31H - 37,117 11,401 48,518

B () A RA A
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20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment assessment for technical know-how

In 2015, in order to secure the supply of mechanical
movements in the future, the Group acquired CATENA SA,
a Swiss watch movement manufacturer, and recognised
an identified technical know-how of HK$70.816 million.
Technical know-how has been fully amortised as at 31
March 2020.

Impairment assessment for trademarks

The carrying amount of trademarks of HK$37.249 million
(2023: HK$37.117 million) represents the trademarks
of self-owned watch brands. Management assesses
annually whether the trademarks exhibit any impairment
by considering the economic benefit generated from the
trademarks. The recoverable amount is determined based
on a value-in-use calculation. This calculation uses pre-tax
cash flow projections based on financial budgets performed
by management covering a five-year period. Management
determined the financial budget based on past performance
and its expectations for the market development.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are
as follows:

(@)  Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond
the five-year budget period of 0% (2023: 2%).

(b)  Negative growth rate used within the five-year budget
period of 5% (2023: growth rate of 5%) which was
considered reasonable with reference to subsequent
sales growth rate.

(c)  Pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections
of 16% (2023: 15%). The discount rate used reflects
specific risks related to the Group.

Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable
change in any of the above key assumptions would not
cause the carrying amount of trademarks to exceed the
recoverable amount significantly.

No impairment loss on trademarks (2023: HK$3.878
million) is recognised during the year ended 31 March
2024.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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20.

RILEE (#)
EEZMERERR

FyWELR AR 0 SR AL A 4R iR
20154 W B B - 5 8% 2F 75 FICATENA SA >
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment assessment for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified
according to business segment. The goodwill is
attributable to the watch wholesale trading operations.
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculation. This calculation uses pre-
tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
performed by management covering a five-year period.
Management determined the financial budgets based
on past performance and its expectations for the market
development. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rate stated below.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are
as follows:

(@  Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond
the five-year budget period of 0% (2023: 2%).

(b)  Negative growth rate used within the five-year budget
period of 8% (2023: growth rate of 5%) which does
not exceed historical growth rate.

(c)  Pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections
of 16% (2023: 15%). The discount rate used reflects
specific risks related to the Group.

Due to a slowdown in the watch wholesale trading
operations, the Group has revised its cash flow forecasts
of the CGU. The CGU has been reduced to its recoverable
amount of HK$130.251 million, and resulted recognition of
impairment losses on goodwill of approximately HK$1.083
million. The impairment losses are recognised in the “Other
operating expenses”.

Management believes that any adverse change in the
assumptions used in the calculation of recoverable amount
would result in further impairment losses.

20.
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21.

22.

141

EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

21.

BEAVEHEBEMZEWESIRNKRG R
&

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Equity investment at fair value through TN V(B2 HAt 2 T Wi 4 51 AR
other comprehensive income Lh)iiepEra <y
— Unlisted equity investment, at fair value — 3k 2wl B & (23 F-(E) 5,710 3,064

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as the
Group considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the fair value gain
recognised in other comprehensive income amounted to
HK$2.646 million (2023: HK$1.471 million).

Al S 3 5 T AN SR A 2
(3 HoAth T i 22 50 > ) iy A AR SR 1
R I W BB B SRS -

BE20244E3 131 H IL4ERE > i HAd 2 16
Wi #5 RN (B M 25 A s W52 64610 B T
(20234 : W1 47 1HE D) -

CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE 22. EWRE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T fiokicx Wi
Consideration receivable JRES %1 346,889 -
Less: impairment loss W E R (5,203) -
341,686 -
Less: non-current portion W IR B (298,975) -
Current portion B 42,711 -

The consideration receivable represents deferred
consideration payments arising from disposal of a
subsidiary (Note 34(c)). The remaining consideration
receivable of approximately HK$346.889 million are
collectable at approximately HK$43.361 million annually
from 2025 to 2028 and a final consideration payment of
approximately HK$173.445 million in 2029.

The consideration receivable bearing interest at a rate of
4.75%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. INVENTORIES 23. FE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Raw materials J AT R 169,350 173,847
Work-in-progress e 8,655 10,827
Finished goods LT 307,596 345,871
485,601 530,545
Less: provision for inventories W AF T (259,350) (308,418)
226,251 222,127
Because of high consumption on inventories where H 7S LA R4 O RHE A B HHE 19 47 B S
allowance have been provided in prior years, as a result, B PR (R DR AR B O R B0 A B
allowance made in prior years against the inventories s ¥E20.92 116 #7C (20234F - 817414
of HK$20.921 million (2023: HK$8.174 million) was JG) °
reversed.
The cost of inventories sold recognised as expense and 202443 31 H R4 B B HERR 45 PR
included in cost of sales amounted to HK$381.888 million B A AN = R R NN DR o R N B
during the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: HK$440.309 381.8881HH 0 (20234F : #s1440.3091A 5
million). Jo) °
24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. BHREMEUERR
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Trade receivables, gross JRES ' B ARk > AR 93,480 71,942
Less: impairment loss (note b) W AT (kD) (1,225) 21)
92,255 71,921
Other receivables HoAth FE i B 3k 12,813 7,499
Deposits i 48,016 41,626
Prepayments TR 7,895 8,600
160,979 129,646
Less: non-current portion W FETEN TR (34,873) (17,220)
Current portion TRy 126,106 112,426

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERARME

24.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

24.

B 5 R HE RS ()

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on 8% 55 H O 43 1T A B UL RE ) TR AR 18
invoice date is as follows: B
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
0-60 days 0-60K 47,804 31,916
Over 60 days 60 KL 45,676 40,026
93,480 71,942
Note: FFaE -
(@  The Group engages designated import and export agents (@)  AAEFIAM R E R AR o s
for the importation of products from the subsidiaries in B2 R (14 7 kA A S A B A D o IRE
Hong Kong to the subsidiaries in the Mainland China. The Do A 4 1 A Y 55 0 ) 45 1 )
balances due from and due to the import and export agents BRAH > EM BRI ERSE - BE
are settled on a back-to-back basis, and such balances are 20243 H31H » A48 B E YA IR 3K S B A5
repayable on demand. The Group’s trade receivables and HR R, 9 B MR A A 10 AL 455 B
trade payables include balances due from and due to the 34,9681 87T (20234F « #132.902
import and export agents of HK$34.968 million as at 31 {H# ) ©
March 2024 (2023: HK$32.902 million).
Other than the balances due from the import and export I T AT B B A A Y AR 5 BR AL - AR
agents, the Group allows an average credit period of 60 Bl T HBICE 5 SR h 8 52 B Ry
days (2023: 60 days) from the invoice date to its trade 60K (20234F : 60K) A5 EHA -
receivables.
(b)  An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date (b)  AREE T A At A7 Al T 488 A0 R AT Dok

by using a provision matrix to measure ECL. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region, and customer type). The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value
of money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off when the
counter party is in severe financial difficulty and there is
no realistic prospect of recovering e.g. under liquidation or
entered into bankruptcy.

Meanwhile, the Group applied general approach to provide
for ECLs for financial assets included in deposits and
other receivables under HKFRS 9. The Group considers
the historical loss rate and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data in calculating the expected credit loss
rate. As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group estimated
the expected loss rate for financial assets included in
deposits and other receivables is insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24, B RHEMEBEWRRGE)
Note: (Continued) A =
(b)  Movements on the loss allowance for impairment of trade (b)  MENE S IR B A B T

receivables are as follows:

2024 2023
HK$/000 HK$'000
BT AT T
At 1 April IYERNE 21 23
Impairment loss CRIEREHE) 1,210 -
Exchange realignment IV 58,2 B (6) )
At 31 March A3A31H 1,225 21
(c)  Trade and other receivables included amounts due from (c)  E Gy B H Al R g AR K B 45 R A B e
related companies of HK$6.518 million (2023: HK$4.988 F T M 6.5 181 BT (2023 4F « s
million). Details of amounts due from related companies are 4.9881H E#IC) - BT BB 2 7 FROE A B
disclosed in Note 36. FE364EER -
(d)  The carrying amount of trade and other receivables are (d) B 5 T HoAth B i R Rk 2 B v (R 4 2 5
denominated in the following currencies: wmr
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T AT T
Hong Kong dollars ey 55,923 50,324
Renminbi N 32,362 31,372
Malaysian ringgit FEAR P B4 24,038 23,127
Swiss francs Bty LB 20,102 869
Singapore dollars Brmigoe 13,059 14,343
Thai bahts BT 2,464 1,848
Others HoAthy 13,031 7,763
160,979 129,646
() As at 31 March 2024, included in trade receivables are (e) JA20244E3HA31H > EIRE 5 ERF -
gross amount of approximately HK$17.32 million (2023: AWM 7 32{E 80 (20234F + &) DL
Nil) that bearing interest at a rate of 4.75%. 4.75%71 5 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. HERRELEEY
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Cash at banks HATH 4 66,895 85,227
Cash on hand SR 816 199
67,711 85,426

Note: BF5E -

(@) The above balances mainly represent cash at banks. Bank (@)  FREREE TR EATEIA o SATAEREREH
balances are deposited in banks with sound credit ratings to TSAERORME T RT AL R B 8RAT 473K > LR
mitigate the credit risk. REREY

(b)  The conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies and (b) 9 AR S A0 o IR M N RS REE o o [
remittance of Renminbi out of the PRC is subject to the rules K I 2 2 v B R A A 14 47 B A 2 )
and regulations of exchange controls promulgated by the TRAIKIBR -

PRC government.

() The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the () BleKRBESEEDHEWEIT

following currencies:

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT T

Singapore dollars HomyE e 25,925 34,460
Hong Kong dollars ey 17,451 15,874
Malaysian ringgit TR 4 14,538 22,052
Thai bahts B 3,655 6,928
Renminbi NG 1,573 1,589
Swiss francs Fit 2 B 972 738
Others HoAtb 3,597 3,785
67,711 85,426

1 45 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 26. AWRPBEATRLEEE
On 28 January 2022, the Group entered into a provisional 202241 H28H - ASE B — 42 M 57 55 =
agreement with an independent third party seeking to 77 W LG R B ko DA R B
dispose one of its properties and further on 10 February — AP o Wi h20224F2 A 10 H 4551 E & i
2022, a sale and purchase agreement of the disposal was i o BEE120/H 8T -

executed for a selling price of HK$120 million.

The disposal was completed on 10 August 2022 and gain M ERIHD 12022498 H10H 2L - i
on disposal of approximately HK$78.689 million was Wi 25 4075 15 7 8.6 891F & o i [ HAth Y 45 | A1
recognised in “other gains” (Note 9). fERg (59 -
27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
Number of
shares of
HK$0.1 each HK$'000
5 B
HERE0.17TH
et B AT
Authorised: TRERA
At 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023, #20224E4H1H » 202343 A31H >
1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024 2023447 1H K%20244F3 A31H 1,600,000,000 160,000
Issued and fully paid: CEAT MBI
At 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023, J#£20224F4 1 H » 202343 A31H
1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024 20234E4 A1 H J20244E3 310 1,046,474,025 104,647
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. RESERVES 28. f#fe
Property,
plantand  (Accumulated
equipment losses)/
Revaluation Echange ~ revaluation refained
Share premium reserve reserve reserve profifs Total
% B8

kRE (R
BfraR  EBE  EXBR  EERR  RERA 18
HKS 000 HKSO0D  HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
B M M M B B

At Aprl 2022 RRE R 1977 (638) (56,08 403,684 (75,446) 173,499
Proftforthe year it - - - - 507% 507%
Other comprehensive income/oss forthe year ERAAERE/ B - 1471 (6,360) - - (4.889)
At31 March 2023 R0 1977 813 (62,418) 403,084 (24)651) 319,405
AtT April 2023 R0034A 18 1977 813 (62,418) 403,684 (24,651) 319,405
Proitfor the year A - - - - 473,151 473,151
Other comprehensive income{oss for he year Eb2mERE/ B - 1646 (15,296) - 130 (12520)
Release of cumulative exchange reserve upon disposal thE G ZGHE B - - 21,897 - - 21,897
At31 March 2024 H4E3B1R 1977 3459 (35,817) 403,684 448,630 801,933
Nature and purpose of reserves REZHEERAR
(i) Share premium i) ROE
Share premium represents amount paid by e 73 Vi {0 i BCSR LR T S2 A ) <
shareholders for capital injection in excess of par AR T o
value.
(i)  Revaluation reserve (i) ETHE
Revaluation reserve represents the cumulative net FOAG A R R AR R O DL AT
change in the fair value of financial assets held at (BT A A 2 T A i 2 6 Y A
FVTOCI at the end of reporting date and is dealt with - R FH S B A > AR EMEE4(h)
in accordance with the accounting policy in Note W2 &t BUR B -
4(h).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. RESERVES (Continued) 28. f&fE A
Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued) R MER AR #)
(ifi)  Exchange reserve (iii)  FE S (it
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange EE S0 fabt M 6475 P A7 [ #8030 0 1 265 B
differences arising from the translation of the financial B R i A 2 W S ZE 8 o fk AR ) IR 4
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt WfEE4(d) rdcE st BOR R -

with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in Note 4(d).

(iv)  Property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve (iv) B - B R EN
The property, plant and equipment revaluation E B SN R A
reserve has been set up and is dealt with in PR AR 524 (e) s B AR A 2
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for b S T B R EOR B o

land and buildings held for own use in Note 4(e).
29. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 29. EIERKIE

JERL VA 7 AR B B AT AT

5

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities is as follows:

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Deferred tax assets R ALl TH 6,482 7,091
Deferred tax liabilities AR SE L IH A (26,287) (26,278)
(19,805) (19,187)
The gross movement on the deferred tax accounts is as RSEBLIANR H s 8
follows:
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
At 1 April R4A1H (19,187) (19,644)
(Charged)/credited to income statement  (F1IBR) /&1 Az % (fFE15)
(Note 15) (410) 595
Exchange realignment iz i) (208) (138)
At 31 March A3A31H (19,805) (19,187)

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 29. EEEBIR (A
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during A DR IR A T e B R B ) O 5 R
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of ARIRI BB m R i A SR AEHE ) A

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred tax assets ELERAEE
Provision
of unrealised Other
Depreciation profitin Other ~ temporary
allowances  inventories provisions  differences Total
BRH&
SR Hfy

fEER WEfE  RRE  EHEEE it
HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000
ERffn  RRffR  REffn BB AW

At1 April 2022 1200244 1H 84 3,674 2214 1,074 7,046
Credited/{charged) to income statement A/ B % 57 1297 (917) (248) 189
Bxchange differences EiEH - 26) (73) (45) (144)
At 31 March 2023 2023F3H31H 141 4,945 1224 781 7,091
AtT April 2023 120234 A1H 141 4945 1224 781 7,09
(Charged)/credited to income statement (k) /7 A& (136) 105 14 (339) (375)
Bxchange differences S - (145) (46) 3 (234)
At 31 March 2024 R04E3A318 5 4905 1,192 380 6,482
Out of the unrecognised tax losses of HK$1,226.592 JIT 45 8 LA 1K 8 A A R B 2 A Tl R B UE
million (2023: HK$1,225.096 million) carried forward, T 1R 4R % Ak 5 1,226.59240 # T (2023
an amount of HK$1,000.475 million (2023: HK$976.137 AE o EME1,225.09640 B500) o Hop i
million) can be carried forward indefinitely. The remaining 1,000.47 546 # 7T (20234F « #976.1371A
HK$226.117 million (2023: HK$248.959 million) will Hor) AT MR A A HeRIEN226.1171H
expire in the following years: HT (20234 © #E15248.9591E #70) AL N
1 R et
1 49 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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29. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 29. EZEBIR (A
Deferred tax assets (Continued) BB IREE ()
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
In the first year H14E 34,221 38,096
In the second year 24 48,050 37,661
In the third year Exkes 71,319 50,049
In the fourth year A 51,917 72,370
In the fifth to tenth years inclusive S5 E 1 04F (B4R E B 4R) 20,610 50,783
226,117 248,959
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of A T AE — B IR [H] A 78 A s 1500 B g 2 =)
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have 3 FLAR W] AE 6 725 15 8 S0 1L LA 1 HC
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered B R 48 - S A 5 S AR k% 45 s 1H e
probable that taxable profits will be available against RRARIE R 7 o
which the tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred tax liabilities ELEBIEAE
Revaluation
of property,
Depreciation plantand  Right-of-use
allowances equipment assets Total
ERE:
TEEE RRBER ERAREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT R AT R
At1 April 2022 202254 1H 5,812 20,338 540 26,690
(Credited)/charged to income statement GFEA) /Tnilids % (1,724) 1,248 70 (406)
Exchange differences HE 5 7% - - (6) (6)
At 31 March 2023 #202343H31H 4,088 21,586 004 26,278
At 1 April 2023 #20234F4H1H 4,088 21,586 604 26,278
Charged/(credited) to income statement 11/ (FFA) it % 8 (48) 75 35
Exchange differences HE 52 - - (26) (26)
At 31 March 2024 #202453831H 4,096 21,538 653 26,287
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30. LEASE LIABILITIES 30. HEAE
2024 2023
Present Present
Minimum value of Minimum value of
lease lease lease lease
payment liabilities payment liabilities
Ri& BEHEE R RiEHE

BERE AEZERE  HEIE SUHZEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEATT BT EWT WP

Minimum lease payment due: B AR AR B8 -
— within one year — 14K 68,469 62,644 56,629 51,681
— more than one year but not exceeding ~ — 14 {H24E R
two years 38,941 36,849 34,154 32,418
— more than two years but not exceeding ~ —2F & H54F A
five years 13,849 13,701 8,813 8,609
121,259 113,194 99,596 92,768
Less: future finance charge T R S (8,065) N/A (6,828) N/A
Present value of lease liabilities HEHFHE 113,194 113,194 92,768 92,768
Less: Amount due for settlement within W NREARNFIIEHSE
12 months (shown under current () & N 2 51)
liabilities) (62,643) (51,681)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 121 H & 2| 414558 441 50,551 41,087
The lease liabilities are denominated in the following FHE BB AR EAT
currencies:
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Hong Kong dollars ki 61,952 34,658
Malaysian ringgit FEAR VYRR A 27,681 18,942
Singapore dollars BrmygoT 16,984 29,274
Renminbi NG 4,889 7,519
Thai bahts Rk 1,688 2,375
113,194 92,768
1 51 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

31.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. Hong Kong
employees that have been employed continuously for at
least five years are entitled to long service payments in
accordance with the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
under certain circumstances. These circumstances include
where an employee is dismissed for reasons other than
serious misconduct or redundancy, that employee resigns
at the age of 65 or above, or the employment contract is
of fixed term and expires without renewal. The amount
of LSP payable is determined with reference to the
employee’s final salary (capped at HK$22,500) and the
years of service, reduced by the amount of any accrued
benefits derived from the Group’s contributions to MPF
scheme (Note 13(a)), with an overall cap of $390,000 per
employee. Currently, the group does not have any separate
funding arrangement in place to meet its LSP obligation.

In June 2022, the Government gazetted the Amendment
Ordinance, which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits
derived from employers’ mandatory MPF contributions
to offset the LSP. The Abolition will officially take effect
on the Transition Date (i.e. 1 May 2025). Separately, the
Government of the HKSAR is also expected to introduce a
subsidy scheme to assist employers for a period of 25 years
after the Transition Date on the LSP payable by employers
up to a certain amount per employee per year.

Under the Amendment Ordinance, the Group’s mandatory
MPF contributions, plus/minus any positive/negative
returns, after the Transition Date can continue to be
applied to offset the pre-Transition Date LSP obligation
but are not eligible to offset the post-Transition Date LSP
obligation. Furthermore, the LSP obligation before the
Transition Date will be grandfathered and calculated based
on the last monthly wages immediately preceding the
Transition Date and the years of service up to that date.

31.

RANERERE

A SE [ S s T A A R RS IR BEA T
NREET ] o MRIEE USR] > AT
FRE UL N > B Z R D AW E IR
ERHESRIRE S - ZE NN EER
Ji AT 2 I BN T3 ) DA A DR A
MR B ~ 4658 8k L L1 AT 19 IR
B s S 40 8 I T AR L JE T AR I R
H WA RWRE &N EHE2HEEA
e 4 (ERA22,500 70) MR 4F 3
P E o M B AR 4 R SR A A EE B (B G
13(a)) LR £ AT T Pl 25 > 4418 B
FHEHE R £5390,000i 00 - B AT > A4EH
S % 5% ST AT AT M S 138 e BE LU AT HR
MR 5 AT »

#20224F6 7 » BURFRIBEETTHRE] > BERR LA
i o e s R et . R s R
MRS a2 Bk o 8% B 6 o 195 7 S O I 3
(BP20254E5 A1 H) EXRAR - HAb > Filk
R FILAT MBSO S T S0 B i — JE Bl
Wh B IR £ S ATE - AT R IR 4 - B
WP H R AT > B AEARS
T EHEER -

WRIEEFT RG] > FOE I H R - AEET
o ) P 5 < (R O A AR IE L ]
A A S R O A T ) R A R <
FAL » HOR ARSI H AR 19 R 0 B
BFAE o BUAL - I F AT AY R RS
FALIF AR G > 37 % B0 I F AT A9 i
BAF R EZEZH L IRE E A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 31. BIRBERIARE )

A LR ATHR I IS & TR B 52 8)

Movements in the present value of unfunded LSP obligation

153

in the current year were as follows: -
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
As at 1 April HZE4H1H 1,150 711
Amounts recognised in the profit or loss: RIBZHTERHNEHE
Current service cost B IR A 226 55
Interest cost )sSa 33 15
Past service cost i RB AR 530 421
Remeasurements recognised REMZEBRSERRBNERNTE
in other comprehensive income: o
Actuarial gains arising from: KA AR A AR
— Changes in financial assumptions — IR R (73) -
— Experience adjustment — KEBR A R (57) -
Benefit payments BRIZ A (6) (52)
As at 31 March HE3IH31H 1,803 1,150

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation at
31 March 2024 is 8.0 years (2023: 9.9 years).

Of the expenses for the year, HK$789,000 (2023:
HK$491,000) has been included in administrative
expenses.

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination
of the LSP obligation are discount rate of 3.7% (2023:
3.0%), expected salary increase of 3.0% (2023: 3.0%) and
expected investment return on offsetable MPF accrued
benefits of 2.5% (2023: 2.5%). The sensitivity analysis
below has been determined based on reasonably possible
changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end
of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions
constant.
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REFE TP > 789,000% 50 (2023 -
491,000 70) EEFFALTECLH o

MERMRE & ST ERBEMBZS
3. 7% BLEE (20234F © 3.0%) ~ TE A
1$3.0% (20234F © 3.0%) M Al #f b i3 i 4
BAREG TR E MR E £52.5% (2023
A1 2.5%) o T AVEUBEE A T T A oAl
BRRMERE A 2 BT o AR R &
RGBT gk 2 s fi e o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31.  RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 31. REREE @)
2024 2023
Increase/ Increase/
Increase  (decrease) in Increase  (decrease) in
inrate  LSP provision inrate  LSP provision
RERKE R
BEEm/ Bt/
BRE (B2) HR% (D)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T
Discount rate Fiks 0.5% (70) 0.5% (54)
Expected salary increase TS 0.5% 29 0.5% 84
Investment return on offsetable MPF WA R R
contribution TR R 0.5% (66) 0.5% (122)
Decrease in the above rates by 0.5% (2023: 0.5%) would bl R0 0.5% (2023 4F ¢ 0.5%) AR
affect the LSP provision by approximately the same amount RS < 188 4 7 AR K SO [R] <6 R 5 7 1) AR
but in the opposite direction. diih-%
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be Hﬂﬁ/‘%jﬁﬁﬂ REEL A B > B Ra&A
representative of the actual change in the LSP obligation as REAE RSZ 7 A B e b BE s )
it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur ﬂtiﬁﬂﬁﬁ@fﬁ*ﬁT RE I A AR A= 9 AR 55
in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may BIEZ EHREEE) o

be correlated.

32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 32. HBRHEMEAEN

2024 2023

HK$/000 HK$'000

BT AT T

Trade payables (note b) JREAH &2 R (D) 55,787 64,763
Contract liabilities (note ¢) GHIA Tf Kﬁufc 892 1,345
Other payables (note d) At AT K (B Ed) 15,082 24,826
Accruals JRET 4 46,752 55,331
118,513 146,265
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERARME

32.

Note:

(a)

(b)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 32. B RHMEMRNR G
BF5E -
Trade payables are unsecured and usually paid within 30 @ BT 5 R AT W R HERR 230
days of recognition. H RS A o
The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice (b) % EESE AT I AT 51 ) MR R i 4
date is as follows: B
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$000
BT AT
0-60 days 0-60K 13,740 29,090
Over 60 days 60K LAk 42,047 35,673
55,787 64,763
Trade and other payables included amounts due to related B2 5y B A AT R 356 T A I W 4 )
companies of HK$2.364 million (2023: HK$940,000). FHIHWE W2 364 H L (20234F -
Details of amounts due to related companies are disclosed 940,0007T) o JEAT [ I 2 SR PE A 1 B
in Note 36. FE36HE
Contract liabilities include advances received from (€) B %) B A 2 A S Sk A ik e R R A0
customers. The decrease in balance of contract liabilities is FIH o B H) A BERFEUT iR P AT
due to the decrease in advances from customers as at year I D IS
end.
In 2023, include in other payable is a deferred consideration (d)  A20234F o HABMEAS FRH G4 TR AT RE AT AR

payable of approximately HK$11.083 million, which
represents a right to acquire the 12% equity interest of a
subsidiary of the Company, namely Catena SA (“Catena”).
The acquisition right is exercisable at the price equal to the
proportional net assets value of Catena. However, if the net
assets value is negative, the purchase price shall be set as
zero. The acquisition right is exercisable until 31 December
2035.

As at 31 March 2024, management carried out a review
on the net assets value and forecasts of future business
performance of Catena and determined that the purchase
price of 12% equity interest in Catena will be close to zero.
As a result, a reversal of deferred consideration payable
and related discounting interest of HK$17.34 million was
recognised to consolidated income statements during the
year (note 9).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 32. EZRHEMENKRR G
Note: (Continued) =)
(e)  The trade and other payables are denominated in the (e)  Eu MMM ARFIL B 2SN -

following currencies:

2024 2023
HK$/000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Hong Kong dollars i 49,472 69,230
Renminbi NG 28,321 26,142
Malaysian ringgit FEA PG RE A 11,106 7,975
United states dollars ESSH 8,947 18,497
Singapore dollars G DIIE O 7,812 7,449
Thai bahts ek 6,420 5,994
Swiss francs Fi L 2 RS 2,913 7,602
Others HoAthy 3,522 3,376
118,513 146,265
33. BANK BORROWINGS 33. MITERK
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Bank borrowings, secured SRAT R HKA 233,984 342,848
Note: Bf&E
(@  The Group’s bank borrowings are repayable on demand, (@)  AEESRATE R REE - FIEE 5
and classified as current liabilities. R o
(b)  The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for the (b)  EAEIASERAT DA A AR E SR TS R
Group’s bank borrowings are: EIRTMEMNT
2024 2023
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
[{ig BT WA
Property, plant and equipment LYE SN & e ] 17 136,014 145,718
Investment properties Eita =g/ S 18 297,800 297,900
433,814 443,618
(c)  The bank borrowings of the Group are denominated in ()  AREMEMRIT R ICEHE -
Hong Kong dollars.
(d)  As at 31 March 2024, weighted average effective interest (d)  A2024%3H31H - SRATEFKIINHET-15
rate per annum for bank borrowings was 7.5% (2023: 3.7%). B MR L7 58 (20234 © 3.7)H) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW INFORMATION 34. GEREREBRMT
(@) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (@ ®METHELENERED
Analysis of liabilities arising from financing activities ASER D 2 BT 7 47 S5 il T B A Y
and the movements in liabilities arising from TR el 3% Bl BT A AR 5 B Y 70
financing activities for each of the years presented. Br o
Lease Bank
liabilities borrowings Total
HESE RITER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
N AT AT HE AT
1 April 2022 1202244 11H 91,028 473,876 564,904
Cash flows Haie (67,432) (131,028) (198,460)
Non-cash flows FH W 66,215 - 66,215
Exchange differences [ e A5 2,957 - 2,957
31 March 2023 202343 H31H 92,768 342,848 435,616
1 April 2023 20234 H1H 92,768 342,848 435,616
Cash flows Hahie (65,240) (108,864) (174,104)
Non-cash flows KB 88,158 - 88,158
Exchange differences e 5t 25 5 (2,492) - (2,492)
31 March 2024 M2024%3831H 113,194 233,984 347,178
(b) Total cash outflow for leases by HEZRESHRHAE
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for FPABERERTNARLESREA
leases comprise the following: T -
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T AT
Within operating cash flows NEEIEE SRR N 40,010 36,640
Within financing cash flows A I ) B R A 65,240 67,432
Represents lease rental paid O AT A 4 105,250 104,072

1 57 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 34. ZEBERERMT )

(c) Disposal of a subsidiary (00 HEWBAR
On 12 December 2023, a wholly owned subsidiary R20234E1212H » AR —H4
of the Company (the “Seller”) entered into a Share B RS A F ([E )y ) B S8 =5
Sale agreement with an independent third party (the (TE T D) ATSL ey S B ok - 5
“Purchaser”) for a disposal of entire issued share J5 —[H 4 G B A W 2R 8 Tk
capital of a wholly owned subsidiary of the Seller A A A S5 WM 535. 1031 # -
at an aggregate consideration of approximately 285 ER20244E2 29 H S, -

HK$535.103 million. The transaction was completed
on 29 February 2024.

The net assets disposed of and the resulting gain on A TR S (L e i MR
disposal are summarized as follows: I
HK$’000
AT
Trade and other receivables B 5 B FABRE ISR R 124
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KB EY) 622
Trade and other payables 5.5 B A EATHR K (153)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 593
Gain on disposal HERE
Total consideration HaffE 535,103
Less: professional fees W BN  2E (3,126)
531,977
Net assets disposed G THE (593)
Release of cumulative exchange reserve upon disposal 8 1% 2 i1 5o fit i (21,897)
509,487
Satisfied by: XA
— Cash — Bl 175,074
— Consideration receivable — JES AR 356,903
531,977
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 34. FZEBREHRERMFT )

159

(c) Disposal of a subsidiary (Continued) (o)

An analysis of net inflows of cash and bank balances

HEHE AR ()

A7 T B S TE ) SR AT 5 B X B A

of the disposal is as follows: AGHIE
HK$'000
AT
Cash consideration BaUE 175,074
Less: Cash and bank balances of the disposed B IR B M BRAT A R
subsidiary (622)
Net proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary H B B 2 ) BT A R T R AR 174,452

35. COMMITMENTS 35. 7RiE
(@) Non-cancellable operating leases (where the Group (@ TAMENEEHEHE(RNEEESRH
is the lessor) HA)

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases of

AT T R T AT R RS AR A

certain land and buildings are as follows: WA SRR T
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Investment properties REMHE
Commitments for minimum lease A BT AN AT AN
payments receivable in relation F18) % S e {1 B W L <5 A
to non-cancellable operating T
leases are payable as follows:
— Not later than one year — 14K 4,774 3,534
— Later than one year but not later — VAR E54E N
than five years 5,875 384
10,649 3,918
Properties LJES
Commitments for minimum lease ASSE B A AT A BN
payments receivable in relation to F1 2R B o A i REL AL <62 4
non-cancellable subleases of operating T :
leases are payable as follows:
— Not later than one year —14ER 710 1,107
— Later than one year but not later — 14ER(E54ER
than five years 876 185
1,586 1,292

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

35.

36.

COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Non-cancellable operating leases (where the Group
is the lessee)

The Group entered into certain short-term leases
for office and retail shops. As at 31 March 2024,
the outstanding lease commitments relating to these
office and retail shops are approximately HK$13.994
million (2023: HK$13.569 million).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 March 2024, Yee Hing Company Limited held
855,200 shares of the Company through its subsidiary
Active Lights Company Limited. 55% of the total issued
ordinary shares of Yee Hing Company Limited is held
by Klayze Holdings Limited, which is the trustee of a
discretionary trust (the “Trust”). Mr. Joseph C.C. Wong is a
beneficiary of the Trust, therefore deemed to be interested
in 855,200 shares of the Company through the Trust’s
interest in Yee Hing Company Limited.

(@ Significant transactions with related parties

Apart from disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the following is a summary of the
significant related party transactions carried out in the
normal course of the Group’s business. The related
parties are entities which have directors in common
with the Company.

(i) Provision of services to related companies

35.

36.

A A

(b) FAHENERBE (RAEEMERK
BA)

AN A5 ) 5 N R R T A AR T
HINFHA o R20244E3H31H » %%
WS 3 T ZAE G A B R AR R L
RIEX B HE13.99410 & (20234 ¢
HHE13.56910 #) ©

FEBALRS

J£20244E3 H31H » FEHAT R 7 8 H
B} 72 vl Active Lights Company Limited$§
B AN A)855,200/ 453 - Klayze Holdings
Limited AME & —JHEY I (F 5T (B RED) 2%
AR REARA R 2 E BT E
B2 55%ME A o TR SR I (A R 2 &
i Ao WO 2 R AE FE R F LA R W
Z RERR AT A2 7]855,200 1 B e 4 <

(@ BRERBALETZIEAXRS

IR B 5 3 HLA R 0 BT 4R 4 > B
Ty A S B BELAT Rl M N\ 2 TR BT A T 1Y
HREZEHGME » L5 IA LR
H #2685 AT o B LR BLA
NFEEA LR E R E

(i) I B L AR R

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT

Building management service P2 TR (i 5Ta)
income (note a) 2,580 2,580
Shared service income (note b) FLE MR (K 5E b) 15,316 14,400
Rental income (note ) FHA WA (o) 3,633 3,130
Royalty income (note d) FEFPRECE B U (B sEd) 654 608
22,183 20,718

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERARME

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@ Significant transactions with related parties

(Continued)

(i)

Provision of services to related companies
(Continued)

Note:

()

A wholly owned subsidiary of the Group
entered into a renewal agreement with
Mengiwa Property Investment Limited
(“MPIL”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Yee
Hing Company Limited, for the provision of
the following services for the period from 1
April 2022 to 31 March 2025 (2023: 1 April
2022 to 31 March 2025):

(i) contract administration with respect to
contracts entered into between MPIL
and third parties from time to time;

(i) property agency liaison and tenancy
management;

(iii)  management of the property manager of
Stelux House; and

(iv)  other miscellaneous administrative
services.

The fee for the provision of the above
services was agreed at HK$215,000 (2023:
HK$215,000) per calendar month during the
agreement period.

The Group provided administrative services
to a related company which has directors
in common with the Group. Shared service
income was charged at cost basis allocated
based on the counterparties’ usage of each
type of service, taking into account factors
such as headcount and the number of stores.

The Group provided leasing services to related
parties which have directors in common with
the Group. Rental income was charged to
related parties based on the occupied area
ratio times total actual costs incurred.

The Group provided licensing services
to related parties which have directors in
common with the Group. Royalty income was
charged at 10% of the amount invoiced by
suppliers or vendors of the counterparties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 36. BEBALIXRS #)
(@) Significant transactions with related parties (@ HEAEBBAIETZEARS #)
(Continued)
(i) Purchases of goods and services from related (i) [ BN L B B dh RAR
parties
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Purchase of goods (note a) WEE B & (fika) 15,818 1,584
Rental expenses (note b) A7 (B 5Eb) 9,243 9,150
Lease management expenses (note c) FLETE 2 37 H (Ffikc) 420 420
25,481 11,154
Note: BiFGE -
(@)  During the year, certain subsidiaries of the (@)  AER o AREEETHE A
Group purchased watch products from a ] ) — [H] B A £ [ 4 A S [R)
related company which has directors in (1 BRI ) O R g
common with the Group. il e
Purchases of watch products from the related T R M > ) S R E A O
company are conducted in the normal A G H R o S8 h 2k
course of the Group’s business. The terms A A A [ B 2 5 5
of transactions are determined and agreed € B WhsE - BT A R AR 5C
between the Group and the counterparty and DRSS
all balances due are repayable according to
trade terms.
(b)  During the year, certain subsidiaries of the (b)  AER s AR T E AT
Group entered into tenancy agreements with ST B A7 B B R S
the following related parties for office premises fhwk - LATH R HF A ZE ~ )5
stores, warehouses, showroom and car-parking S R BEAE KT
spaces: i :
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
MPIL Wi 7,687 7,743
Other related parties HARA B A L 1,556 1,407
9,243 9,150
() A related company provided lease (©  —Z A B A w1 A 4 H R

management services to the Group. The fee
for the provision of such services is charged at
pre-determined amount during the agreement
period.

(LA B BB o $RALRESE
5 4 B T LR T S 1K) 42
BUEWCE R ©

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Balances with related parties

The balances due from/to related companies as
disclosed in Notes 24 and 32 are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The related
companies are entities which have directors in
common with the Group.

(c) Key management compensation

36.

BEBALXS @)

(b) EBRERBALZBNER
Wi 524 B2 32 FT 45 8 14 B o e JRE A ] i
25 [ B 2 RS SR B R R

SRAEHE o Bl 2~ m) i BELAR 4 B g A7 O
Al 3= 2 FH -

(0 FEEEEHH

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T

Salaries and other short-term employee 34 & HAth 5 #4g & 18 £
benefits 5,603 4,838
Contribution to retirement benefit scheme ARG H {5 117 106
5,720 4,944

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37. HARAE

As at 31 March 2024, a subsidiary of the Company has
secured various performance bonds to its landlord of
certain retail shops and a supplier, details as follow:

202443 H31H > Al — WD 2 7
CHCA 2 S R AR 0 1R
# o RN

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Security given to banks for performance — #RATHR L1 JE £ (35 & 15
bonds 7,738 7,202

At 31 March 2024, the directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Group
under the above guarantees.

38. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The comparative figure of “trade and other payables” in
the consolidated balance sheet have been reclassified to
“retirement benefit obligations” to conform the current
period’s presentation. The new classification of the accounting
items was considered to provide a more appropriate
presentation of the state of affairs of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE 39. AREEABRRFEAREDR
COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company RAEEEER
2024 2023
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E BT T AT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary B 2 W % 40 - -
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE ST BfF 88 2 W 0 a 767,830 766,848
Trade and other receivables & 5y Je HoAth FES AR 2k 261 294
Cash and cash equivalents B4 Bl aE MY 2,022 2,038
770,113 769,180
Total assets EERE 770,113 769,180
EQUITY e
Share capital A 104,647 104,647
Reserves Tt H5 b 34,714 34,714
139,361 139,361
Total equity IR
LIABILITIES 8fE&
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 Be HARREATHR K 2,546 2,013
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAST B w3k IE a 628,206 627,806
630,752 629,819
Total liabilities BEH8%E 630,752 629,819
Total equity and liabilities REREERE 770,113 769,180

Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2024 and

TEHEGIE20244E6 H 25 H AU T 51 A

are signed on its behalf by: REE
Joseph C.C. Wong Liao Ching Mei
HA B2 i B

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
FIERITHAE#,

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

TTEH R BB

B () A RA A
2024 AR
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39. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE 39. AREEABRREEEHXR D)
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: R

(a) The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.

(b)  Reserve movements of the Company

(a)

BB REZR A ©

b)  AFIHMEES)

JRE e % B A A T 2 ) ) R R SR -

Share Retained
premium profits Total
BARE REBF iz
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
AT AT AT
At 1 April 2022 202244 H1H 1,977 32,737 34,714
Loss for the year FNER - - -
At 31 March 2023 ®202343H31H 1,977 32,737 34,714
At 1 April 2023 "2023F4H1H 1,977 32,737 34,714
Loss for the year N - - -
At 31 March 2024 R202453H318 1,977 32,737 34,714
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S
40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40. FEMEQT

The principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2024 and 31 March #E2024F3 431 H K20234F3H31H » &

2023 are: R0} AR U,
Particulars of Percentage of equity
share capital issued attributable to the Group (%)
Place of incorporation/ BRITRE SEFERENE DL
operation Principal activities Number Value
HMRYL SEh  TERE B®  SREE 2024 2023
Investmenti% &
Stelux Holdings International Group ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
(BVI) Limited SR AT s ESTr
Stelux Holdings Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 1,000 HKS$1 100 100
FOLTE R AR A i basidie AP
Stelux Investments and Properties British Virgin Islands ~ Investment holding 1 US$1 100 100
(BVI) Limited PIRIE LB BarER 1578
Thong Sia (BVI) Company Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
be I Agils HEER 1%
CC Group (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
KRR SRR 157
Stelux Watch Group (BVI) Limited ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
LR ba<idie (BT
City Chain (Bermuda) Holdings Bermuda Investment holding 12,000 Us$1 100 100
Limited [EF ¢ RERR B3
Stelux Watch Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Investment holding 2 HK$1 100 100
Limited &b s (A
Property#] %
City Chain Properties Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$1 100 100
I B A PR A i IESa T
Oswald Property Management Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$100 100 100
Company Limited ik YR E 1007
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40. EEMBEDIR &)
Particulars of Percentage of equity
share capital issued ~ attributable to the Group (%)
Place of incorporation/ BRTRA SEFMEEENE DL
operation Principal activities Number Value
HRAL SEh  EEXR B8 SREE 2024 2023
Property (Continued)
NE (R
Stelux Properties Agency Limited Hong Kong Property agency and 2 HKS$1 100 100
DtEREARA R ik management L AP
ESNeLY &1
Retailing and tradingZ &R E 5
City Chain Company Limited Hong Kong Watch retailing 250,000 HK$100 100 100
G TRA T it BT 007
City Chain (M) Sdn Bhd Malaysia Watch retailing 3,333,333 RM1 100 100
L) N HHEEE 187
City Chain (Macau) Company Macau Watch retailing 2 MOP5,000 100 100
Limited M EHTE TR
I R () A R 5,0007C
City Chain Stores (S) Pte Limited Singapore Watch retailing 1,800,000 S§1 100 100
A HEEE b
City Chain (Thailand) Company Thailand Watch retailing 200,000 Baht100 100 100
Limited #E HREE 1007
210,000 Baht100
10025k
Pronto Watch SA Switzerland Watch distribution 100 SFr1,000 100 100
Hit: Sk 6 1,000% 1
il
Solvil et Titus SA Switzerland Watch distribution 300 SFr1,000 100 100
it k8 1,000 £
il
CYMA SA Switzerland Watch distribution 100,000 SFr1 100 100
Bit: B Hi Lk
Lissignol Sarl Switzerland Watch distribution 200 SFr100 100 100
Bit: Sk 7 1005 118
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40. EEMBEDIR &)
Particulars of Percentage of equity
share capital issued ~ attributable to the Group (%)
Place of incorporation/ BRITRA SEFMEEENEDL
operation Principal activities Number Value
MR IREH E®  SREE 2024 2023
Retailing and trading (Continued)
TERESZ (@
Stelux International Licensing Bahamas Trademark holding and 2 Us$1 100 100
Limited B licensing EST
T BRREA AL
Stelux Watch Limited Hong Kong Watch supply chain 1,000,000 HKS$1 100 100
BESA AT il management N AD
SRR
Thong Sia Watch Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Watch distribution 80,000 HK$10 100 100
TR A R ] &  EYi] 107
Stelux Trading (International) Hong Kong Watch distribution 2 HKS$1 100 100
Limited Fik BN e
Thong Sia Company (Singapore) Pte  Singapore Watch distribution 2,000,000 S§1 100 100
Limited Hmg gk Hrne o
Thong Sia Sdn Bhd Malaysia Watch distribution 1,000,000 RM1 97.6 97.6
o UL SR %%
Universal Geneve SA Switzerland Watch supply chain 5,000 SFr1,000 - 100
Bt management and 1/000%f
distribution i
B LB B T I 7 B
Catena SA Switzerland Manufacture of watch 1,016,667 SFr1 100 1000
}\:ﬁj: movements 1}{lﬁj:i\£alz

TSRS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40. EMEAR )
Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation/ attributable to the Group
operation Principal activities Paid up capital ~ EBEFHEERNE L
SR St TEEH BRER 2024 2023
Retailing and trading (Continued)
ZERES ()
Stelux Thong Sia (Guangdong) The PRC (foreign-invested ~ Watch retailing, trading HK$258,500,000 100 100
Trading Limited commercial enterprise) and related services H#5258,500,0007C
Bt R A RAR O ERRE GRS SEEE - E5 R
MR R
Note: s -
(@)  Non-redeemable preference shares. (@)  AAITEREER
(b)  100% equity interest included 88% of equity interest and a (b)  TO0%HE % 145 88 % B HE K LA B A R i HE
right to purchase 12% of equity interest. HiE 1 2% I HE
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